
Page 1 
 

 

METROPOLITAN BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

The 6/4/20 meeting will be held telephonically at 1:00 p.m. 

pursuant to Governor Lee’s Executive Order No. 16. 
 

 

 

 

 

MS. ASHONTI DAVIS 

MS. CHRISTINA KARPYNEC 

MR. TOM LAWLESS 

MR. LOGAN NEWTON 

MR. ROSS PEPPER, Vice-Chair 

MR. DAVID TAYLOR, Chairman 
 

 

 

Public Input to the Board 

 

Comments on any case can be emailed to the Board of Zoning Appeals at 

bza@nashville.gov. Additionally, comments can be made by calling (629) 255-1902 and 

leaving a voice mail. When leaving a voice mail be sure to identify yourself by name and 

address, include the case number, and limit your message to one to two minutes. All voice 

mails will be played for the board during the meeting. Comments emailed by 12:00 noon on 

Wednesday, June 3, 2020, will be included in the board’s packet for their review. Any 

comments received after that time will be read into the record at the meeting. We urge you to 

make comments electronically or through the voice mailbox. However, a remote station will 

be set up at the Sonny West Conference Center (700 2nd Avenue South) for anyone who is 

unable to submit their comments electronically and wishes to make comments via  telephone. 

Social distance recommendations will be implemented at the remote station. 
 

Consent Agenda 

 

The BZA utilizes a consent agenda for its meetings. One board member reviews the record 

for each case prior to the hearing and identifies those cases which meet the criteria for the 

requested action by the appellant. If the reviewing board member determines that testimony 

in the case would not alter the material facts in any substantial way, the case is recommended 

to the board for approval. The following items are proposed for the consent agenda on the 

6/4/20 docket. If anyone opposes one of these cases, they should email bza@nashville.gov 

and state their opposition for the board’s review. 

2020-080 (324 Plus Park Blvd.) – requesting a variance from parking 

requirements to construct a hotel. 

mailto:bza@nashville.gov
mailto:bza@nashville.gov


Page 2 
 

2020-133 (3209 Granny White Pike) – requesting a variance from street 

setback requirements to construct a single-family residence. 

2020-135 (3757 Westport Dr) – requesting variance from street setback 

requirements to construct a single-family residence. Recommended for 

approval on the condition that the house massing not deviate from what was 

submitted to the board on the site. 

2020-136 (1103 Montrose Ave) – requesting a variance from lot size 

requirements to construct a detached accessory dwelling unit. 

 
 

Previously Heard Cases Requiring Board Action 
 

 

2020-088 (1311, 1313 & 1315 2ND AVE N) variance from landscape buffer requirements 

within the IR District. This case was heard on 5/21/20 and failed to receive four 

affirmative votes. 

 
New Cases to Be Heard 

 

CASE 2020-073 (Council District - 4) 
 

WADE HYATT, appellant and BRENTWOOD MEDICAL TRADING, LLC, owner of 

the property located at 5429 EDMONDSON PIKE, requesting variances from parking 

and landscape buffer requirements in the OL District, to use an existing space for a 

medical office. Referred to the Board under Section 17.20.030 and 17.24.230. The 

appellant has alleged the Board would have jurisdiction under Section 17.40.180 B. 

 
Use-Medical Office Map Parcel 16109015500 

Results- Deferred 7/16/20 
 

CASE 2020-075 (Council District - 34) 
 

BETHEL CHAPEL, appellant and BB PROPERTY TRUST, owner of the property 

located at 5670 GRANNY WHITE PIKE, requesting a variance from sign requirements 

in the R10 District, to install an LED sign. Referred to the Board under Section 17.32.050. 

The appellant has alleged the Board would have jurisdiction under Section 17.40.180 A. 

 
Use-Religious Institution Map Parcel 15900026400 

Results- Deferred 7/2/20 



Page 3 
 

CASE 2020-080 (Council District - 16) 
 

ALPESH PATEL, appellant and TULSI NARAYAN HOSPITALITY, LLC, owner of 

the property located at 324 PLUS PARK BLVD, requesting a variance from parking 

requirements in the CS District, to construct a hotel.  Referred to the Board under Section 

17.20.030.   The appellant has alleged the Board would have jurisdiction under Section 

17.40.180 B. 

 

Use-HOTEL Map Parcel 10600013400 

Results- 
 

 

                                        CASE 2020-093 (Council District - 6) 

 

REVEY, SCOTT D. & JESSICA, appellant and owner of the property located at 2416 

EASTLAND AVE, requesting variances from maximum living area square footage and 

maximum footprint requirements in the R10 District, to convert an existing garage into a 

detached accessory dwelling unit.  Referred to the Board under Section 17.16.030 G.7.A 

and 7. The appellant alleged the Board would have jurisdiction under Section 17.40.180 B. 

 

Use-Accessory Dwelling                                                                 Map Parcel 08312010800 

 

Results- Deferred 6/18/20 

 

 

 

CASE 2020-109 (Council District - 24) 
 

KATHLEEN MURPHY, appellant and MAYHUGH, JOAN, owner of the property 

located at 218 MOCKINGBIRD RD, requesting an Item A appeal challenging the zoning 

administrator's issuance of a building permit for a detached accessory dwelling unit in the R8 

District. Referred to the Board under Section 17.40.180.A. The appellant has alleged the 

Board would have jurisdiction under Section 17.40.180 A. 

 
Use-Detached Accessory Dwelling Unit Map Parcel 10312015900 

Results- Deferred 7/2/20 

 

 
 

 



Page 4 
 

 

CASE 2020-118 (Council District - 6) 
 

OUTFRONT MEDIA, LLC, appellant and PSC METALS, INC, owner of the property 

located at 610 S 2ND ST, requesting an Item A appeal challenging the zoning 

administrator's decision to revoke building permit 2019074327 in the IG District. Referred 

to the Board under Section 17.32.150.B.12.  The appellant has alleged the Board would 

have jurisdiction under Section 17.40.180 A. 

 
Use-Billboard Map Parcel 09307005600 

Results- 

 

CASE 2020-119 (Council District - 20) 
 

EDGE PLANNING, LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE and URBAN DESIGN, 

appellant and TEE LINE, LLC, owner of the property located at 104 DULUTH AVE, 

requesting An Item D appeal to change an existing nonconforming use of a steel and metal 

fabrication company to another non-conforming use in the R8 District, to allow a 

nonconforming use for an indoor commercial amusement. Referred to the Board under 

Section 17.40.650.C.3.b. The appellant has alleged the Board would have jurisdiction 

under Section 17.40.180 D. 

 
Use-Indoor Commercial Amusement Map Parcel 09109003100 

Results- 

 

 
CASE 2020-120 (Council District - 26) 

 

KEMP, CHASE W. & KATHLEEN C., appellant and owner of the property located at 5216 

SMARTT DR, requesting variances from front and side setbacks in the RS20 District, to 

construct an attached garage and porch addition. Referred to the Board under Section 

17.12.020.A. The appellant has alleged the Board would have jurisdiction under Section 

17.40.180 B. 

 

Use-Single Family Map Parcel 14616016700 

Results- Deferred to 6/18/2020 

 

 

 



Page 5 
 

CASE 2020-132 (Council District - 14) 
 

FARON FERDOWSI, appellant and DODSON CHAPEL INVESTORS, LLC, owner 

of the property located at 3960 DODSON CHAPEL RD, requesting a variance from floor 

area ratio restrictions in the MUN District to expand a medical office building. Referred to 

the Board under Section 17.16.060.A. The appellant has alleged the Board would have 

jurisdiction under Section 17.40.180.B. 

 
Use-Medical Office Map Parcel 08600013700 

Results- 
 

 

CASE 2020-133 (Council District - 18) 
 

DUANE CUTHBERTSON, appellant and COSTANZA, EDITH A., owner of the property 

located at 3209 GRANNY WHITE PIKE, requesting a variance from street setback 

requirements in the R8 District, to construct a single-family residence. Referred to the 

Board under Section 17.12.030C.3. The appellant has alleged the Board would have 

jurisdiction under Section 17.40.180 B. 

 
Use-Single Family Map Parcel 11805001800 

Results- 

 

 

 

CASE 2020-134 (Council District - 4) 
 

EL SHADDAI CHRISTIAN CHURCH, appellant and IGLESIA CRISTIANA EL 

SHADDAI CHRISTIAN CHURCH, owner of the property located at 10604 

CONCORD RD, requesting a variance from sidewalk requirements in the Ar2a District, 

to renovate a religious institution without building sidewalks or paying into the sidewalk 

fund. Referred to the Board under Section 17.20.120.A.1.b The appellant has alleged the 

Board would have jurisdiction under Section 17.40.180 B. 

 
Use-Religious institution Map Parcel 18100000800 

Results- Deferred 7/2/20 

 

 
 



Page 6 
 

CASE 2020-135 (Council District - 1) 
 

GREGORY DANIELS, appellant and RODGERS, MARY H., owner of the property 

located at 3757 WESTPORT DR, requesting a variance from street setback requirements in 

the RS15 District, to construct a single-family residence. Referred to the Board under 

Section 17.12.030.C.3. The appellant has alleged the Board would have jurisdiction under 

Section 17.40.180 B. 

 

Use-Single Family Map Parcel 04800031500 

Results- 
 

 

CASE 2020-136 (Council District - 17) 
 

BEAU WEST, appellant and GRAHAM, ALYSSA & DOUGLAS, owner of the 

property located at 1103 MONTROSE AVE, requesting a variance from lot size 

requirements in the R8 District, to construct a detached accessory dwelling unit. Referred 

to the Board under Section 17.16.030.G.2. The appellant has alleged the Board would have 

jurisdiction under Section 17.40.180 B. 

 

Use-Detached Accessory Dwelling Unit Map Parcel 11801013400 

Results- 

 

 
 

SHORT TERM RENTAL CASES 
 

CASE 2020-055 (Council District - 19) 
 

BOWEN, ANDREW C., appellant and owner of the property located at 828 1ST AVE N, 

requesting an Item A appeal, challenging the zoning administrator's denial of a short-term 

rental permit. The applicant operated after the previously issued STRP permit expired in the 

DTC District, to obtain a permit. Referred to the Board under Section 17.16.070.U. The 

appellant has alleged the Board would have jurisdiction under Section 17.40.180 A. 

 
Use-Short Term Rental Map Parcel 082140A06000CO 

Results- 
 

 



Page 7 
 

CASE 2020-065 (Council District - 19) 
 

DERR, CORBY DOUGLES, appellant and owner of the property located at 178 2ND 

AVE N 101, requesting an Item A appeal, challenging the zoning administrator's denial of 

a short-term rental permit. Appellant operated after issued short term rental permit expired 

in the DTC District, to obtain a permit.  Referred to the Board under Section 17.16.070.U. 

The appellant has alleged the Board would have jurisdiction under Section 17.40.180 A. 

 

Use-Short Term Rental Map Parcel 093024A10100CO 

Results- 
 

CASE 2020-069 (Council District - 19) 
 

AMANDA COAKER, appellant and FOUNTAINS GERMANTOWN HOLDINGS, LLC, 

owner of the property located at 1401 3RD AVE N Unit 208, 242, 330, 428, requesting an 

Item A appeal, challenging the Zoning Administrator’s cancellation of four Short Term 

Rental permits after a determination that the permits were issued in error in the SP District, 

the permits will be reinstated. Referred to the Board under Section 17.16.070.U The 

appellant has alleged the Board would have jurisdiction under Section 17.40.180 A. 

 
Use-Short Term Rental Map Parcel 08209050100 

Results- 

 
CASE 2020-078 (Council District - 17) 

 

HILAND, PAMELA & THIEMAN, VICKIE, appellant and owner of the property 

located at 1978 GATLIN DR, requesting an Item A appeal, challenging the zoning 

administrator's denial of a short-term rental permit. Appellant operated after issued short 

term rental permit expired in the RS10 District, to obtain a permit. Referred to the Board 

under Section 17.16.250. E. The appellant has alleged the Board would have jurisdiction 

under Section 17.40.180 A. 

 
Use-Short Term Rental Map Parcel 10614004100 

Results- 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Page 8 
 

CASE 2020-112 (Council District - 9) 
 

MCGAUHUEY, BRADLEY D. & LISA M., appellant and owner of the property located 

at 1108 BERWICK TRL, requesting an Item A appeal, challenging the zoning 

administrator's denial of a short-term rental permit. Appellant operated after the previously 

issued short term rental permit expired in the RS20 District, to obtain a permit. Referred to 

the Board under Section 17.16.250.E. The appellant has alleged the Board would have 

jurisdiction under Section 17.40.180 A. 

 
Use-Short Term Rental Map Parcel 05211005300 

Results- 
 

 

CASE 2020-130 (Council District - 2) 
 

THOMAS ROTHRAUFF, appellant and T & T, LLC, owner of the property located at 

2136 24TH AVE N, requesting an Item A appeal, challenging the zoning administrator’s 

cancellation of existing STRP permit due to a change in ownership in the OR20 District, to 

obtain a permit. Referred to the Board under Section 17.16.070.U. The appellant has 

alleged the Board would have jurisdiction under Section 17.40.180 A. 

 
Use-Short Term Rental Map Parcel 081024F00700CO 

Results- 

 

 

 

CASE 2020-131 (Council District - 7) 
 

COLLINS LEGAL, PLC, appellant and POLI, RYAN J., owner of the property located 

at 1517B HAYDEN DR, requesting an Item A appeal challenging the zoning 

administrator's revocation of a short-term rental permit in the R10 District, to reinstate the 

short-term rental permit. Referred to the Board under Section 17.16.250.E. The appellant 

has alleged the Board would have jurisdiction under Section 17.40.180 A. 

 
Use-Short Term Rental Map Parcel 072160V00200CO 

Results- Deferred 6/18/20 



Case # 2020-080



Case # 2020-080



Case # 2020-080



Case # 2020-080



Case # 2020-080



Case # 2020-080



Case # 2020-080



Case # 2020-080



Case # 2020-080

































































































































































































Metropolitan Board of Zoning Appeals 

Metro Howard Building 

800 Second Avenue South 

Nashville, Tennessee 37210 

METIIOPOI.JT,\N t.O\'l:llNM 

Appellant :  _________ _ 

Property Owner: ________ _ 

Representative:.,_: ________ _ 

Date: 

Case#: 2020-119
Map & Parcel: ______ _ 

Conncil District ___ _ 

The undersigned hereby appeals from the decision of the Zoning Administrator, 
wherein a Zoning Permit/Certificate of Zoning Compliance was refused: 

Pnrpose: 

ActivityType: ______________________ _ 

Location: 

This property is in the ____ Zone District, in accordance with plans, application 
and all data heretofore filed with the Zoning Administrator, all of which are attached 
and made a part of this appeal. Said Zoning Permit/Certificate of Zoning Compliance 
was denied for the reason: 

Reason: 

Section(s): _______________________ _ 

Based on powers and jurisdiction of the Board of Zoning Appeals as set out in Section 
17,40.180 Subsection ____ Of the Metropolitan Zoning Ordinance, a Variance, 
Special Exception, or Modification to Non-Conforming uses or structures is here by 
requested in the above requirement as applied to this property. 

Appellant Name (Please Print) Representative Name (Please Print)

Address Address 

City, State, Zip Code City, State, Zip Code 

Phone Number Phone Number 

Email Email 

Appeal Fee: _________ � 

Case # 2020-119

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
John D. Haas Jr.

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
Tee Line, LLC

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
EDGE Planning Landscape Architecture & Urban Design

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
March 24, 2020

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
91-09 & 31.00

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
104 Duluth Avenue

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
R8

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
20

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
Change an existing nonconforming use to a different nonconforming use that is

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
more compatible with the surrounding land uses per 17.40.650(C)3b

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
Indoor Commercial Amusement

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
210 12th Ave. South - Suite 202

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
Nashville, TN 37203

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
615.477.6846

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
jhaas@edgela.com

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
210 12th Ave. South - Suite 202

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
Nashville, TN 37203

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
615.477.6846

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
bgallagher@edgela.comjhaas@edgela.com

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
$200.00

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
EDGE Planning, Landscape Architecture & Urban DesignJohn D. Haas Jr.

bgallagher
Typewritten Text
EDGE Planning, Landscape Architecture & Urban DesignJohn D. Haas Jr.



 

 

   

 

March 23, 2020 
 
Metro Department of Codes Administration 
Board of Zoning Appeals 
800 2nd Avenue South 
Nashville, TN 37210 
 
Dear Ms. Lamb: 
 
We respectfully submit to you our Item D Appeal request for the property located at 104 Duluth Avenue, 
Map 91-09 / Parcel 31.00 (See Exhibit ‘A’).  
 
The attached submittal requests to change the existing nonconforming use to a different nonconforming use 
that is more compatible with the surrounding land uses per 17.40.650(C)3b. of The Code of the Metropolitan 
Government of Nashville and Davidson County, TN.  
 
Per the attached Exhibit ‘A’, a portion of the existing use extends from parcel 32.00, zoned (IR) into parcel 
31.00, zoned (R8). The current use of the site is a steel and metal fabrication company. See Exhibit ‘B’ for an 
existing aerial of the site. Existing photographs of the current use occupying the site have also been included 
withi this application. 
 
Through adaptive reuse of the existing structure, it is our intent to accommodate a use of indoor commercial 
amusement. We feel this use would be a more compatible nonconforming use for the subject property 
located at 104 Duluth Ave and the surrounding community than the existing fabrication company. Indoor 
commercial amusement is a permitted use under the existing (IR) zoning for the remainder of proposed 
project site. 
 

If you should have any questions regarding our request, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

 

 
 
John D. Haas, ASLA 
Principal 
EDGE  
Planning, Landscape Architecture & Graphic Design 
 

Case # 2020-119



       APPLICATIONS FOR INTERPRETATION AGAINST THE ZONING 

ADMINISTRATOR AND NON-COMPLYING/NON-CONFORMING USES 

After your appeal is filed, Zoning staff will visit the site to take photographs for the Board members so 

that they will have a better idea of the nature of our request. Zoning staff will notify the district 

councilmember of the hearing. You will be responsible for preparing the envelopes and notices for 

mailing to the owners of the property within 1,000 feet of the property at issue in this case. The 

envelopes must include the return address for the BZA and the case number. Fold and insert the notices 

into the envelopes, seal the envelopes, and apply first class postage.  These neighbor notices must be 

delivered to zoning staff at least twenty-three (23) days before the public hearing. Additionally, you will 

be responsible for purchasing, posting and removing the red Zoning Appeal signs for the subject 

property. (See attached Metro Code of Laws requirements regarding sign placement.) 

The day of the public hearing, it will be your responsibility to convey to the Board your request and the 

reasons for the request. In the case of questioning the Zoning Administrator in his interpretation of the 

Zoning Code, it is your job to explain to the Board why he is wrong and you are right. In the case of non-

conforming or non-complying, it is your job to explain to Board how this change/enlargement, etc. 

would result in less of an impact on the surrounding area. It would be to your benefit to contact 

your neighbors and explain to them what you are doing and attempt to obtain their support 

and evidence that support in some form at the public hearing.  

Any party can appeal the Board’s decision to Chancery or Circuit Court within sixty (60) days from the 

date the order in the case is entered. Should your request be granted, we would remind you that it is 

your responsibility to obtain the permit for which you have applied. You should also be aware that you 

have two (2) years to obtain the permit or you would have to re-file your request with the Board. 

Once your request is filed, the staff will review your request to verify that the submittal is complete. 

Incomplete submittals will not be scheduled for a hearing until complete. 

Any correspondence to the Board must be submitted to our office by close of business, the Thursday 

prior to public hearing to be included in the record.  

I am aware that I am responsible for removing the Sign(s) after the public hearing. 

 

_____________________________________   ____________________________ 

 APPELLANT                  DATE 

      

Case # 2020-119

bgallagher
Text Box
John D. Haas Jr.PrincipalEDGE Planning, Landscape Architecture & Urban Design

bgallagher
Text Box
March 24, 2020



TYPE C 20'
 LANDSCAPE BUFFER

GRAPHIC SCALE (IN FEET)

0

1 inch = 50 ft.

050 25 10050

N

106B DULUTH

MAP 91-05

PARCEL 280.00

IR ZONING

106 DULUTH

MAP 91-09

PARCEL 32.00

IR ZONING

104 DULUTH

MAP 91-09

PARCEL 31.00

R8 ZONING

DULUTH AVENUE

40' R.O.W.

VERNON AVENUE

50' R.O.W.

DULUTH  ICE
INDOOR COMMERCIAL
AMUSEMENT FACILITY

106 Duluth Avenue
20th  COUNCILMANIC DISTRICT, METROPOLITAN NASHVILLE

DAVIDSON COUNTY, TENNESSEE

PLANNING  LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE  URBAN DESIGN

210 Twelfth Avenue South

Suite 202

Nashville, Tennessee 37203

P  615-250-8154

F  615-250-8155

OVERALL SITE

BOUNDARY

EXISTING

STRUCTURE

LEGEND:

PORTION OF SITE

SUBJECT TO BZA

ITEM D REQUEST

Case # 2020-119

bgallagher
Text Box
EXHIBIT 'A'



Case # 2020-119



Case # 2020-119



Case # 2020-119



Case # 2020-119



Case # 2020-119



132

14

Case # 2020-132



Case # 2020-132



Case # 2020-132



Case # 2020-132



Case # 2020-132



 

Case # 2020-132



3960 DODSON CHAPEL RD

03/24/2019

Case # 2020-132

ddiaz-barriga
Highlight



Case # 2020-132



Metropolitan Board of Zoning Appeals 
Metro Howard Building 

800 Second Avenue South 

Nashville, Tennessee 37210 

METnorn),lTAN C.iO\'t::HNM t:l,L\1"\0 OA\'lUSO� Ci.JU::\'TY 

Appellant ;QIMt'lQ. f 1e� hbx:ku-
Property Owner: £d�+h Wt-1'-:z._ei-.. 

Representative: : 'LM-0-oe C&lliher:�

Date: q, LI . 2-o -----------
Case#: 

2020- 1 3 3 -------- 
Map &Parcel: \\<l05oo I 8'00 

CounciJ District ___.\ ... 8
"'--

_ 
The undersigned hereby appeals from the decision of the Zoning Administrator, 
wherein a Zoning Permit/Certificate of Zoning Compliance was refused: 

ActMty Type: S l "'zt._ · F o,,v)i \ "I '.f,.srd �'-.\-I b \

Location: �Z.04 ,c-.nr.':'.\ Whi-\--lL J?1 k.t.. 

This property is in the 1<, g Zone District, in accordance with plans, application 
and all data heretofore filed with the Zoning Administrator, all of which are attached 
and made a part of this appeal. Said Zoning PermiUCertificate of Zoning Compliance 
was denied for the reason: 

Reason: �--\T-e.,<L..\-- 'S12---\--t:>o..c.,\l. 

Section(s): \7. \I-• 03 Ot\ 

Based on powers and jurisdiction of the Board of Zoning Appeals as set out in Section 
17.40.180 Subsection ___ Of the Metropolitan Zoning Ordinance, a Variance, 
Special Exception, or Modification to Non-Conforming uses or structures is here by 
requested in the above requirement as applied to this property. 

U \AW\t. C \,I, \:hbe..< \-so.._
Appellant Name {Please Print) 

-> 
Atldress 

City, State, Zip Colle 

Phone Number 

Email 

U� �-\-�t>�,-kor-
Rcpresentative Name (Ple11se Print) 

\ialo f\ f\\\60'"' �\. 
Address 

�e,...<:.h'1\\\<L --tw 371.o� 
City, State, Zip Code 

Phone Number 

d L. � ..\ h� IL\@ �f',0-:\ \. LO,.__

Email 

Appeal Fee: ________ _ 

Case # 2020-133



Case # 2020-133



Case # 2020-133



Case # 2020-133



Case # 2020-133



Case # 2020-133



04/10/20

Case # 2020-133



04/10/20

Case # 2020-133



04/10/20

Case # 2020-133



Case # 2020-133



BZA Case No. 2020-133 
3209 Granny White Pike 

Variance of the street setback 

Nashville Board of Zoning Appeals 

Agenda Date: June 4, 2020 

Case No. 2020-133 

Address: 3209 Granny White Pike 

 

Request: Variance of the street (Granny White) setback requirement in the R8  

  zoning district. 

Purpose:  To permit a new single-family dwelling. 

 

 

3209 Granny White Pike 

The request for a Variance of the street setback requirement in the R8 zoned 

district is made to permit the construction of a new single-family dwelling on the 

subject property - closer to the Granny White Pike property line.   

  



BZA Case No. 2020-133 
3209 Granny White Pike 

Variance of the street setback 

In residential areas with an established development pattern, the minimum 

required street setbacks for an R8 zoned lot shall be the average setback…of the 

four nearest single-family or two-family houses on the same block face that are 

oriented to the same street. If the average is less than what is required by Table 

17.12.030A then the minimum required by the table is the default street setback - 

in the R8 district the default setback is 40’ from Granny White (a major street).  

In this case, the default street setback is enforced. The default setback is 40’ from 

the street property line adjacent to Granny White Pike. 

The applicant is requesting a Variance of the street setback in order to place the 

proposed house up to the existing property line along Granny White Pike - 

effectively a 0’ setback, although the house as proposed will be almost 65’ from the 

original Granny White Pike.    

 

  

The applicant is requesting the Variance in order to allow for reasonable placement 

of a compatibly scaled single-family dwelling on the subject property. The proposed 

setback is situated well behind any discernable pattern in the streetscape of Granny 

White Pike.  



BZA Case No. 2020-133 
3209 Granny White Pike 

Variance of the street setback 

        

 

View north from Clayton Avenue across the existing home. 

The proposed two-story single-family dwelling will contain 3,286 sf of floor area 

and a detached garage oriented toward the alley. The proposed home is 

compatible with new construction and major renovations/additions in the 

surrounding neighborhood. It is important to note, the subject property is NOT in 

the Belmont Hillsboro Conservation Overlay district.   

 

 



BZA Case No. 2020-133 
3209 Granny White Pike 

Variance of the street setback 

 

The original lot was created in 1906 - as Lot 187 of the Victoria Place subdivision. 

The lot was created with 60’ x 150’ dimensions.     

 

 



BZA Case No. 2020-133 
3209 Granny White Pike 

Variance of the street setback 

 

TDOT Taking: 

In March, 1974, the State of Tennessee purchased 4,200 sf of the original lot (46.6% 

of the original 9,000 sf lot) for purposes of constructing a “controlled access 

highway and all right of ingress and egress to” to I-440. In over 46 years the ‘taken’ 

property has not been utilized by TDOT. It appears unlikely TDOT will construct an 

access interchange from Granny White to 440 any time in the near future. 

As a result of TDOT’s purchase of ROW the subject property was significantly 

modified with regard to size and shape. While the small existing house fit on the 

modified property it also became non-conforming with regard to the street 

setback.  The current property owner continues to use the TDOT ROW as a practical 

front yard - as do other owners along this portion of Granny White Pike.  

New Dimensions: The depth of the lot was reduced from 150’ to 70’ on the 

southern boundary and 90’ along the northern boundary. The shallowness of the 

property, established by the TDOT taking, has created a unique circumstance. The 

subject property’s shape and size is not typical for R8 zoned property. 

Application of the Zoning Code creates a building envelope for redevelopment that 

is not practical. 

The Code’s 40’ street setback (applied from the property line) along Granny White 

combined with a 20’ rear setback create a building envelope that is only around 10’ 

deep along the southern boundary.  

Outdated Requirement: The Code’s street setback of 40’ is uniformly applied along 

all Major streets in Nashville regardless of their historic or prevailing development 

character. Granny White Pike has a development pattern and character that is 

significantly different from other ‘Major’ streets in Nashville…Granny White Pike 

should not have the same residential setback as Charlotte Pike or Dickerson Pike. 

The application of a 40’ street setback is an outdated Code requirement that is 

being reconsidered in most new Zoning decisions. If this site was redeveloped 

through an SP it is very likely there would be minimal discussion related to a shallow 

street setback along Granny White Pike.    



BZA Case No. 2020-133 
3209 Granny White Pike 

Variance of the street setback 

No Harm Proposed: The variance sought will allow an outcome that is practical and 

compatible with the surrounding context. The variance sought will not impose on 

any adjoining proeprty owner. The house, placed as proposed along the Granny 

White Pike property line will be setback behind the prevailing pattern along that 

street. All other zoning code requirements will be followed including the setback 

requirement along Clayton Avenue and the rear setback. The variance sought will 

allow a house of a size that is consistent with those found in the surrounding 

neighborhood. Without some sort of reasonable variance redevelopment of the lot 

may result in a house taller than as proposed.  

All access and parking are proposed from the alley in the rear of the property. The 

house will be oriented to Granny White Pike.  

   



BZA Case No. 2020-133 
3209 Granny White Pike 

Variance of the street setback 

 

 



BZA Case No. 2020-133 
3209 Granny White Pike 

Variance of the street setback 

Unique Circumstances: 

1. The R8 zoned lot has a unique shape created by an action of the State of Tennessee, not 

self-imposed; 

2. The significantly reduced depth of the lot combined with the zoning Code’s excessive 40’ 

street setback on Granny White would result in an unnecessary hardship as it would 

create an impractical building envelope;  

3. The property is located on a block where other relatively similar lots have homes with 

shallow street setbacks; 

4. The lot was platted in 1906, prior to our current zoning restrictions. 

The reduced setback on Granny White Pike will result in benefits including:  

1. A stronger relationship between the front of the house and the public realm on Granny 

White Pike;  

2. A deeper building envelope that will allow a two story home that is far more compatible 

with the surrounding neighborhood; 

3. More practical redevelopment of the lot which will hasten reconstruction of the sidewalk 

on the Granny White Pike frontage to current MCSP standards (wider sidewalk). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



From: Blocher, Jesse A
To: Board of Zoning Appeals (Codes)
Subject: 20200025532
Date: Thursday, May 28, 2020 6:37:53 PM

Board of Zoning Appeals -

I am writing in reference to appeal 20200025532. I do not have an objection to the specifics of
this appeal, however I am writing to request specifically that this parcel be required to build a
sidewalk rather than pay whatever equivalency fee is available. 
This parcel faces Granny White Pike and is part of a silly, 2-block section between Clayton
Ave and Cedar Ave where there is no sidewalk on the west side of Granny White Pike. As a
resident of Ferguson Ave, we live in a sidewalk “no mans land” where we are surrounded by
sidewalks yet have no way to safely walk off of our street. There are (I believe) 6 houses
represented in this two block section of Granny White Pike, and this house is one of them.
Thus, getting a sidewalk here represents 1/6 of the way across and will help this very small
connection we need. 

Thanks for your consideration,

Jesse Blocher
1509 Ferguson Ave

----
Jesse Blocher
Assistant Professor of Finance
he/him/his
Owen Graduate School of Management | Vanderbilt University
401 21st Ave S | Nashville, TN 37203 | 615-322-3687
http://owen.vanderbilt.edu/blocher

mailto:jesse.blocher@vanderbilt.edu
mailto:bza@nashville.gov
http://owen.vanderbilt.edu/blocher


Case # 2020-135



Case # 2020-135



Case # 2020-135



Case # 2020-135



Case # 2020-135



Case # 2020-135



Daniels & Associates, Inc. 
 
 

 
P.O. Box 3629 

Brentwood, Tennessee 37024 
Office: 615-837-3664 

email: gdan3629@bellsouth.net 

 
 

 

 

April 20, 2020 

Department of Codes Administration 

800 2nd Avenue South 

Nashville, Tennessee 37210 

Re: Variance Request 

3757 Westport Drive 

Map 048, Parcel 315.00 

 

To whom it may concern: 

The owners of the subject property request a variance in the front yard setback. As you will see 

on the attached sketch “House Setback Plan” dated April 9, 2020 the average setback of the 

adjacent four houses is 77.1 feet. We are requesting a front setback of 66.7 feet which matches 

the adjacent existing house front setback on Parcel 094.00. The variance would be for 10.4 feet. 

The topography of Parcel 315.00 falls to the rear of the property. The 77.1 foot setback will 

require a taller crawl space which will be about 10 feet +/-. Every foot we can keep the house 

closer to Westport Drive will decrease the depth of that crawl space. Matching the existing house 

setback on Parcel 094.00 will not adversely affect the other houses on Westport Drive. 

The owners request that I be the Appellant and the Representative for them during the BZA 

meeting. 

Let me know if you have any questions or need anything else. 

Sincerely, 

Gregory E. Daniels 
Gregory E. Daniels, TN R.L.S. #1489 

Daniels & Associates, Inc. 

 

 

 

\18-009-letter-2020-04-20.let 

 

Case # 2020-135



Case # 2020-135



Case # 2020-135











AppellAnt, L tJe:,.:' D•te, �'i,..,/2�z�c.,. __ 1�_ZP __ _ 

l'ropenyOwn<r. ,lf-_l,t�s� c.-;,,J,.,.. 
2020-> .L ca.�e #: ______ _ 

Repr=ntarive, ,/11_/,4.f,.. �m,,.,{;,,.

Map&Pa=t _____ _ 

CO)H.Jc;il District ---

Tbc un(Unigned bcrtby appeal$ from tilt dtch:iQo (If the: Z<ulffl2 Administrator, 
whercln a Zorih,g F,e;rmit/Ctr(mc:1,e ofZo11l02Compli2nce wu ref�: 

This pro-pcny bin th,e. ___ Zone Distrkt, fa aec()rd:tn('(: 'With pl:u,,, upplicatlot1 
and all duW heretofott tUed with tbeZoil!.1111. Administrator, :111 c,f whkb an 3:Uadi.cd 
and made a pnt c,rthii appeal Said Zo•iltg PermlU(:ttiif'.i('jltC of Zoning Complbnoe 
was dnimt for the reasort: 

R .. ,.., L,,f�,u:- .Z76,-,1 . .f1. ,sf.p�f,.{-floe. ftl!''J'{i(.C..=,,,.,,£.o/,/_,,./,f;, 
Section.(s): ____________________ _ 

.Bascdou f)OWel'l and jtarudiclic:m of tbc Bo:ard uf7.on.ing Appeal� l'.1$ $Cl out J111 Sotd.ic.c 
17.4o.J80St1.bs'tdio11 ___ 0ftbe: Mdropolitari Zoning Ordirulntt,, a Vuian,ce. 
Special Exception, or ModHioilion to No1�Co.11rc,rm_ing WltS or$lrnett1rcs is btrt by 
rtqlt.C:5ted in the:. 3bbvc rcquin: .. �11! us 11pp.lkd to Ulk property. 

5021 :S/-;//-d_JJ,.. 
-�-

4-{.,J..,,:f{ I w ..J72.Jc
Uty. Sl•re. Zip C.O.,C 

__f/E> -72c - 7'/05-
"'-Nu•ohcr 

�w------

fltd•/.�""-�s hJ<,,(,;,.,., . .;::J �,,., · 
1 __ 

'-- .._ ·v .1;.....,.-, 
ku,111a 

Appc,.1 •·ot: __ _ 

I 

136

17

r8

Case # 2020-136



Case # 2020-136



Case # 2020-136



To	Whom	It	May	Concern:	

The	purpose	of	this	appeal	is	to	gain	a	secondary	dwelling	at	1103	Montrose	Ave.	
Nashville,	TN	37204.		The	lot	size	is	7,724sqft		which	is	276sqft	smaller	than	the	8000sqft	
minimum	for	a	secondary	dwelling.		The	structure	already	has	a	permit	(#2019074717)	
and		construction	is	underway.			The	issue	is	the	height	of	the	building	that	is	approved	
for	the	lot.			

The	proposed	plans	that	were	approved	offer	a	smaller	eve	height	and	have	height	
restrictions.		We	would	like	to	be	approved	for	a	secondary	dwelling	so	that	we	can	
extend	the	height		to	a	full	second	story.		The	new	plan	shows	the	requested	height	of	
the	second	story.		The	structure	we	are	proposing	does	not	exceed	the	height	of	the	
main	house	or	the	height	of	the	garage/apartment	next	door.	

Again	the	goal	is	not	to	change	the	footprint	of	the	structure	or	change	the	restrictive	
covenant	that	is	in	place	and	has	been	filed	with	the	register	of	deeds.		The	goal	is	to	
obtain	the	height	of	a	full	second	story.	

Sincerely,	

Beau	West	

Montcalm	Construction	LLC.	
Phone:	6157207405	
Email:	montcalmconstruction@gmail.com	

Case # 2020-136



Case # 2020-136



Case # 2020-136



From: Sledge, Colby (Council Member)
To: Board of Zoning Appeals (Codes)
Cc: Lamb, Emily (Codes); Cathey, Eben (Planning)
Subject: BZA items in D17
Date: Thursday, May 28, 2020 9:04:46 AM

Good morning, all,
 
Here are my positions on upcoming BZA items in District 17:
 
2020-78: I oppose this appeal for a STR permit, based on the many warnings the property received.
2020-136: I am neutral on this DADU appeal, as the property is within 90 percent of the standard lot
size for such a structure.
 
Thanks,
 
Colby
 
----
Colby Sledge
Metro Councilmember, District 17
(615) 442-3727
Sign up for my weekly newsletter here!
 

Case # 2020-136

mailto:Colby.Sledge@nashville.gov
mailto:bza@nashville.gov
mailto:Emily.Lamb@nashville.gov
mailto:Eben.Cathey@nashville.gov
https://colbysledge.nationbuilder.com/blog






























Case # 2020-055



Case # 2020-055



Case # 2020-055



Case # 2020-055



Case # 2020-055



Case # 2020-055



Case # 2020-055



Case # 2020-055



Case # 2020-055



Case # 2020-055



Case # 2020-055



Case # 2020-055



Case # 2020-055



Case # 2020-065



Case # 2020-065



Case # 2020-065



Case # 2020-065



Case # 2020-065



Case # 2020-065



Case # 2020-065



Case # 2020-065



Case # 2020-065



Case # 2020-065



Case # 2020-065



Case # 2020-065



Case # 2020-065



Case # 2020-065



Case # 2020-065



Case # 2020-069



Case # 2020-069



Case # 2020-069



Case # 2020-069



11322 – 2019_A. Will – BZA Petition_Collins Legal, PLC 

BEFORE THE METROPOLITAN BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS OF NASHVILLE 

AND DAVIDSON COUNTY 

IN THE MATTER OF: ) 

) 

AMANDA COAKER ) 

) 

Appellant, ) 

) 

vs. ) Case No. 2020–069 

) 

METROPOLITAN DEPARTMENT OF ) 

CODES & BUILDING SAFETY, ) 

) 

Appellee. ) 

APPEAL OF STRP PERMIT DENIAL 

INTRODUCTION 

Amanda Coaker (“Ms. Coaker”) is authorized agent who filed on behalf of Fountains 

Germantown Holdings, LLC (“FGH”), the owner of 1401 3rd Avenue North, Nashville, Davidson 

County, Tennessee 37208. On January 29, 2015, with the intent to construct a multifamily 

residential complex, FGH invested a significant amount of money to purchase the property which 

would later become to be known as the Fountains of Germantown (the “Fountains”) located at 

1401 3rd Avenue North, Nashville, Davidson County, Tennessee 37208.  Before said investment 

could take place, FGH partnered with councilwoman Erica Gilmore to pass Ordinance No. 2014-

765 (the “SP Ordinance”),  

[a]n ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning

Ordinance of the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by

changing from IR to SP zoning for properties located at 302 Taylor Street, 1408

and 1410 4th Avenue North and 1401 and 1403 3rd Avenue North, south of Van

Case # 2020-069



11322 – 2019_A. Will – BZA Petition_Collins Legal, PLC 
2  

Buren Street (2.43 Acres), to permit up to 249 multifamily dwelling units and all 

uses permitted by the MUL-A zoning district. . ..” 1 

 

The SP Ordinance was introduced on May 6, 2014; approved on June 11, 2014; and became 

effective June 13, 2014 thereby allowing any and all uses permitted by MUL-A. At the time the 

SP Ordinance was introduced, the Metro Code provided the following definition for MUL-A: 

MUL, Mixed-Use Limited District and MUL-A, Mixed-Use Limited District 

Alternative. The MUL and MUL-A districts are intended to implement the 

moderate intensity mixed-use policies of the general plan. These districts also may 

be used in areas policied [sic] for concentrations of mixed commercial uses and for 

existing areas of commercial arterial development that are located in the vicinity of 

major intersections. The bulk standards permitted by this district, along with the 

range of allowable uses, are designed to promote the preservation and adaptive 

reuse of larger structures that contribute to the historical or architectural character 

of an area. These districts should be applied to areas that have good access to 

collector or arterial streets and public transportation service. MUL-A is designed to 

create walkable neighborhoods through the use of appropriate building placement 

and bulk standards and is an alternative to a zoning district that requires a site plan.2 

 

Most notably, at the time the SP Ordinance was introduce, the Metro Code did not include 

a definition or defined land use for STRPs.  

In 2019, Ms. Coaker then took all required precautions in preparation to obtain four (4) 

non-owner-occupied short-term rental (“STRP”) permits for Units 208, 330, 242, and 428 

(collectively referred to as “the Units”) located at the Fountains. On March 6, 2019, Ms. Coaker 

submitted four (4) STRP Permit Applications for the Units to Metropolitan Government of 

Nashville and Davidson County (“Metro”) employee, Ronya Sykes. On May 13, 2019, Metro 

employee, Teresa Moore, issued the following permits to the respective Units: 

- CASR-2019013279 – Unit 208   CASR-2019013257 – Unit 242  

- CASR-2019013276 – Unit 330   CASR-2019013248 – Unit 428 

 
1 See Metro Ordinance No. BL2014-765. 

2 See M.C.L. § 17.08.020.D.2, October 31, 2013 Version. 

Case # 2020-069



11322 – 2019_A. Will – BZA Petition_Collins Legal, PLC 
3  

Since obtaining the permits, the Appellants have managed and operated the Units as non-

owner occupied STRPs without incident. Nonetheless, on January 29, 2020, Ms. Coaker received 

notice from Metro Zoning Examiner, David Frabutt, that all four (4) permits must be 

“deactivated”.3  

Ms. Coaker’s appeal to this Board centers primarily on a single claim for relief. Ms. Coaker 

submits that this STRP is squarely protected by the law passed by the Tennessee legislature on 

May 17, 2018. Ms. Coaker would offer that Metro Codes did err when they illegally, arbitrarily, 

and capriciously revoked and/or “deactivated” all four (4) Permits; therefore, the Permits should 

be reinstated. 

GROUNDS FOR RELIEF 

A. The Chancery Court has already ruled on this issue and provided, by our own Court’s 

interpretation, that Metro acts illegally, arbitrarily, and capriciously when they cancel, 

deactivate, or otherwise revoke permits allegedly issued in error due to the fact that, 

although STRPs had not yet been defined at the time the SP Ordinance was enacted, 

STRPs were not included in the uses permitted by the SP Ordinance controlling the 

property. 

 

In Case No. 19-146-III, Kevin Kwong v. Metropolitan Government of Nashville and 

Davidson County, Tennessee, Department of Codes Administration, the Planning Commission, 

and the Board of Zoning Appeals, before the Chancery Court for the State of Tennessee Twentieth 

Judicial District, Davidson County, Part III, the Honorable Chancellor Ellen Hobbs Lyle presiding, 

Petitioner Kevin Kwong filed a lawsuit that sought the Court to reverse the cancellation of the 

Petitioner’s STRP Permit which was previously upheld by this Board.  

The facts of Kwong are almost directly on point. Kwong was the owner of real property in 

Nashville, Tennessee: 

 
3 See copy of email from David Frabutt attached as Exhibit 1. 

Case # 2020-069



11322 – 2019_A. Will – BZA Petition_Collins Legal, PLC 
4  

Prior to the Petitioner’s ownership of the Property, when it was being developed by 

the builder, the lot was zoned RS5. This zoning allows single-family dwellings, but 

not two-family dwellings. Because the developer wanted to build two homes 

instead of one on the lot, the developer used a Specific Plan Zoning District, as 

established by Metro Ordinance No. BL2014-802 (the “SP”). The SP changed the 

zoning of the Property from RS5 zoning to SP zoning, which gave the developer 

the ability to construct either one single-family home or two single family homes. 

The relevant section of the SP, which afforded the developer this opportunity, 

states, “The uses of this SP shall be limited to one single-family or a detached two-

family dwelling.” The SP was introduced in June of 2014, and approved August 8, 

2014, and applied to the Property when the Petitioner purchased it. On September 

29, 2015, the Petitioner applied for his STRP Permit, and the Permit was issued on 

September 30, 2015 by Metro Codes.  

 

At that time Metro provisions BL2014-909 and BL2014-951 governed the 

Petitioner’s Permit. Section 2 of BL2014-909 defined “Short Term Rental 

Property” as “an accessory (A) use in all zoning districts that allow residential use.” 

In other words, BL2014-909 defined the STRP as an accessory use to the primary 

residential use, and as noted the SP zoning applicable to the development of the 

Petitioner’s lot allows residential single-family and two-family dwellings, enabling 

the Petitioner to obtain the Permit. Thereafter, pursuant to law, the Petitioner 

renewed his STRP Permit each successive year, through September 29, 2016, 

September 29, 2017 and September 29, 2018, and Metro Codes never indicated 

there was a problem with renewal of the Permit. On February 24, 2017, BL2016-

492 became effective. It did not amend BL2014-951 as previous ordinances had 

done, but instead BL2016-492 repealed BL2014-951 entirely and created new 

regulations within the Zoning Code. BL2016-492 struck short term rental 

regulations from Title 6 of the Metro Code and created new short-term regulations 

in Title 17 of the Metro Code Title on Zoning, with BL2017-608 constituting the 

current Metro Ordinance. This changed the definition of STRPs.  

 

As noted above, at the time the Petitioner obtained his STRP Permit, STRPs were 

classified as residential accessory uses. With the enactment of these new Metro 

provisions, that definition of STRP changed. STRPs were made a use separate and 

apart from single-family and two-family residences—the named uses in the SP 

applicable to the Petitioner. With his STRP Permit set to expire on September 29, 

2018, the Petitioner applied to renew the Permit on August 17, 2018. . .  

 

On October 12, 2018, the Petitioner received an email from Metro Codes giving 

notice of the cancellation of his STRP Permit, and a letter notifying him that his 

Case # 2020-069



11322 – 2019_A. Will – BZA Petition_Collins Legal, PLC 
5  

STRP Permit was effectively revoked. On October 17, 2018, the Petitioner 

appealed the Permit cancellation to the BZA. Cancellation of the Petitioner’s STRP 

Permit was upheld by the BZA.4 

In Kwong, Metro argued that  

the administrative decision revoking the Petitioner’s STRP Permit was based on the 

analysis of the Zoning Administrator that an SP ordinance must specifically 

enumerate a land use for it to be allowed, and in this case short-term rentals are not 

allowed in this particular SP because they were not specifically enumerated in the 

SP. . . The Zoning Administrator’s position was that because STRP is now a defined 

land use separate and apart from single-family and two-family (the named uses in 

the SP ordinance), the SP would need to be amended to allow the new use of an 

STRP by the Petitioner.5 

 

After the close of proof, the Court considered “the lower tribunal’s decision to determine 

whether the tribunal exceeded its jurisdiction or acted illegally, frequently, or arbitrarily.”6 In 

applying said standard to the record, the Honorable Chancellor Lyle determined that the decision 

to revoke Mr. Kwong’s permit was in contravention of Tennessee Law; as such, Chancellor Lyle 

ordered the cancellation of the permit to be reversed and remanded the matter to this Board for 

reinstatement. The Court based its ruling on the following reasons: 

 In this case the BZA failed to apply controlling state law and failed to have 

discerned that when the Petitioner’s Permit was issued, Ordinance BL2014-909 

was in effect to provide that an “STRP is permitted as an accessory use in all zoning 

districts that allow residential use provided a permit has been issued for operation 

of the property as a STRP pursuant to section 6.28.030 of the metropolitan code.” 

In this case the SP applicable to the Petitioner is clearly a zoning district that 

“allow[s] residential use” as it allows a “single-family dwelling” or a “detached 

two-family dwelling,” which are residential uses under the Zoning Code. The law 

in effect at the time the Petitioner was issued his STRP Permit is significant because 

of controlling state law. On May 17, 2018, the Short-Term Rental Unit Act 

(“STRUA”), codified at Tennessee Code Annotated sections 13-7-601 et. seq. 

became effective. The STRUA provides that all STRPs in existence at the time are 

 
4 Memo. And Final Order Granting Petition for Writ of Certiorari and Reversing Cancellation of Permit, P. 2-4, Dec. 

18, 2019, No. 19-146-III. (A copy of the Order is attached hereto as Exhibit 2). 

5 Id. at 4-5. 

6 Id. at 5. 

Case # 2020-069



11322 – 2019_A. Will – BZA Petition_Collins Legal, PLC 
6  

“grandfathered.” That is, Tennessee Code Annotated section 13-7-603(a) requires 

the application of the specific ordinances in effect at the time the STRP permit was 

granted. (a) Except as otherwise provided in subsection (b), an ordinance, 

resolution, regulation, rule, or other requirement of any type that prohibits, 

effectively prohibits, or otherwise regulates the use of property as a short-term 

rental unit shall not apply to property if the property was being used as a short-term 

rental unit by the owner of the property prior to the enactment of the ordinance, 

resolution, regulation, rule, or other requirement by the local governing body. The 

ordinance, resolution, regulation, rule, or other requirement in effect at the time the 

property began being used as a shortterm [sic] rental unit is the law that governs 

the use of the property as a shortterm [sic] rental unit until the property is sold, 

transferred, ceases being used as a short-term rental unit for a period of thirty (30) 

continuous months, or has been in violation of a generally applicable local law three 

(3) or more separate times as provided by § 13-7-604. For purposes of this 

subsection (a), an ordinance, resolution, regulation, rule, or other requirement is in 

effect at the time it is lawfully enacted by the local governing body and not the time 

in which it is introduced for consideration by the local governing body. (emphasis 

added). Thus, pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 13-7-603(a), the law that was in effect 

at the time the Petitioner received his STRP Permit “is the law that governs the use 

of the property as a short-term rental property . . ..” Therefore, even though the 

Metro Zoning Code has since been amended to classify a non-owner occupied 

STRP as a commercial use, the version of the Zoning Code that applies to the 

Petitioner’s Permit is BL2014-909, which classified all STRPs as residential 

accessory uses. At that time STRPs were not a defined use separate and apart from 

single-family and two-family—the named uses in the SP applicable to the 

Petitioner. It was an error in law for the BZA not to comply with state law and apply 

to the Petitioner’s STRP Permit the Metro Code provisions in effect at the time the 

Permit was issued. Accordingly, the cancellation of the Petitioner’s STRP Permit 

must be reversed. 7 

 

Given the above cited facts and ruling by the Honorable Chancellor Lyle, the 

Appellant would request this Board and its members, in the interests of judicial efficiency 

and mitigating what would be a waste of taxpayer dollars if this matter is litigated, to 

reinstate the Permits issued in the instant matter. 

 
7 Id. at 5-9. 

Case # 2020-069



11322 – 2019_A. Will – BZA Petition_Collins Legal, PLC 
7  

B. In the alternative, if this Board finds that the instant issue cannot be resolved by the 

Order in Kwong, Metro Codes acted illegally in the cancellation or “deactivation” of these 

permits. 

 

Metro Codes acted illegally by denying the rights granted to the Appellant by the state 

through the STRUA,8 in effect, nullifying the state law.9 Specifically, it is the Appellant’s position 

that the Zoning Administrator based the cancelation / “deactivation” on the fact that the SP did not 

specifically state that a STRP was a permitted use. The SP in question allowed for multifamily 

units and all uses permitted by the MUL-A zoning district; however, at the time the SP was 

enacted, STRP was not a defined land use in the Metro Code. The Appellant would allege that it 

will likely be the Zoning Administrator’s position that a STRP was a separate use and different 

from multifamily units and all uses permitted by the MUL-A zoning district; as such, the permits 

should be deactivated, canceled, or otherwise revoked. Based on information and belief, it is or 

has been the Zoning Administrators position that because the SP did not specifically enumerate 

STRP as an approved use, the only way the SP could allow for use as an STRP would be by way 

of Amendment. Lastly, the Appellant would allege that such a position is without merit and not 

supported by any authority of law. 

On October 24, 2014, at the request of Council-Lady Allen, then Zoning Administrator, 

Bill Herbert prepared a memorandum opinion summarizing the then-current zoning law regarding 

STRPs.10 The letter states in pertinent part: 

Currently, Metro has no zoning regulations that are specific to STRPs. . . 

With no zoning regulations applicable to STRPs, we have allowed STRPs 

to operate anywhere a residential use is allowed. . . Being that the zoning 

code does not presently contain a use classification that defines STRP, and 

does not set forth districts where they can be located, it is the opinion of this 

office that we currently have no authority under the zoning code to regulate 

 
8 A copy of the Short-Term Rental Unit Act (House Bill No. 1020) is attached hereto as Exhibit 2. 

9 See Sinks v. Metro. Gov't of Nashville & Davidson Cty., No. 86-85-III, 1986 WL 8149, at *2 (Tenn. Ct. App. July 

24, 1986). 

10 A copy of the Memorandum Opinion is attached hereto as Exhibit 3. 

Case # 2020-069



11322 – 2019_A. Will – BZA Petition_Collins Legal, PLC 
8  

the STRP use. . . It is the opinion of this office that STRPs may be regulated 

and a use permit required provided the zoning code is amended to define 

the term “Short-Term Rental Property” and to create a classification for 

STRPs within the Zoning District Land Use Table. . ..11 

 

BL2014-909 permitted STRPs as an accessory use to the SP when it amended the Metro 

Code to the following language: “an accessory use in all zoning districts that allow residential 

use.” Counties and municipalities cannot ignore applicable state regulatory acts while at the same 

time “wield[ing] their [own] land use control power in conflict with state law”. 12 Rather, municipal 

ordinances must be “construed in light of the state statutes empowering local governments to enact 

them [or continue to maintain them] in order to avoid conflict and to enable related statutes and 

ordinances to operate concurrently.”13 Further, “[z]oning ordinances are in derogation of the 

common law, and operate to deprive an owner of the use of land which might otherwise be lawful. 

So, in application, such laws should be strictly construed in favor of the property owner.”14 As 

such, Metro Codes had no basis for revoking the Permits. 

1. Metro Codes acted illegally by failing to apply BL2014-951, BL2016-381, 

BL2016-492 in the governance of the Appellant’s permits as required by 

the Short-Term Rental Unit Act enacted by the Tennessee State legislature. 

 

Metro Codes acted illegally when they failed to follow the STRUA and did not apply 

BL2014-951, BL2016-381, BL2016-492, in the governance and revocation of the Appellant’s 

permits. The primary purpose and effect of the STRUA was to grandfather all STRPs in existence 

in at the time and give direction to local municipalities regulation of STRPs as well as to give 

STRP permit holders the ability to know which law or ordinance would govern their STRP. When 

describing short-term rental units, the STRUA states that  

 
11 See Exhibit 3. 

12 421 Corp. v. Metro. Gov't of Nashville & Davidson Cty., 36 S.W.3d 469, 476 (Tenn. Ct. App. 2000). 

13 Id. 

14 State v. City of Oak Hill, 204 Tenn. 353, 321 S.W.2d 557, 559 (Tenn. 1959); see also Brunetti v. Board of Zoning 

Appeals, No. 01A01-9803-CV-00120, 1999 WL 802725, at *4 (Tenn. Ct. App. Oct. 7, 1999). 

Case # 2020-069



11322 – 2019_A. Will – BZA Petition_Collins Legal, PLC 
9  

“[u]sed as a short-term rental unit means the property was held out to the 

public for use as a short-term rental unit, and. . . for property that began 

being held out to the public for use as a short-term rental unit within the 

jurisdiction of a local governing body that required a permit to be issued or 

an application to be approved pursuant to an ordinance specifically 

governing short-term rental units prior to using the property as a short-term 

rental unit, a permit was issued or an application was approved by the local 

governing body for the property. . ..”15 

 

When referring to the law or ordinance that would govern an STRP permit, the 

STRUA provides that 

“[t]he ordinance, resolution, regulation, rule or other requirement in effect 

at the time the property began being used as a short-term rental unit is the 

law that governs the use of the property as a short-term rental unit until the 

property is sold, transferred, ceases being used as a short-term rental unit 

for a period of thirty (30) continuous months, or has been in violation of a 

generally applicable local law three (3) or more separate times as provided 

by § 13-7-604.16 

 

When speaking on statutory interpretation, the Tennessee Supreme Court has indicated that 

the Court’s primary object is to “carry out the intent of the legislature without unduly broadening 

or restricting the statute.”17 “[Courts] must apply [a word’s] plain meaning in its normal and 

accepted use without a forced interpretation that would limit or expand the statute’s application.”18  

A plain reading of the STRUA without a forced interpretation expressly indicates that when 

an application for a STRP permit is issued or approved for a property, the local law or ordinance 

in effect at the time of the issuance or approval of the STRP permit is the law that the local 

governing body must apply to the STRP permit or application. As such, to be in compliance with 

state law, Metro Codes must apply the STRUA and Metro Ordinances BL2014-951, BL2016-381, 

 
15 Tenn. Code Ann. 13-7-602(9). 

16 Tenn. Code Ann. 13-7-603(a). 

17 Mansell v. Bridgestone Firestone N. Am. Tire, LLC, 417 S.W.3d 393, 400 (Tenn. 2013). 

18 Eastmen Chem Co. v. Johnson, 151 S.W.3d 503, 507 (Tenn. 2004). 

Case # 2020-069



11322 – 2019_A. Will – BZA Petition_Collins Legal, PLC 
10  

BL2016-492, BL2017-60819 in the governance, including the revocation, of the Appellant’s STRP 

Permits.  

It therefore follows that, in accordance with the STRUA and BL2014-951, Metro Codes 

can revoke the Appellant’s STRP Permits only in the following situations: (1) the Property is sold 

or transferred to another owner; (2) the Property ceases being used as a short-term renal unit for a 

period of thirty (30) continuous months, or (3) the Property has been in violation of a generally 

applicable local law three (3) or more separate times. After acquiring the permits from Metro 

Codes on May 13, 2019, the Appellant at all times complied with the requirements of Metro 

Ordinance BL2014-951, BL2016-381, BL2016-492, and the STRUA. Metro had no right to revoke 

the permits.  

In this particular case, the Properties have not been sold, transferred, or ceased to exist as 

an STRP for a period of thirty (30) consecutive months. The Appellant never received or had three 

or more complaints within a calendar year filed against them, nor did the Department of Codes 

ever notify the Appellant in writing of any complaint filed against them. The Department of Codes 

administration never made a determination that violations of the Code or any other ordinance or 

law relating to STRPs or STRP permitting occurred that warranted the revocation of the permits 

to operate the Appellant’s STRP. In short, the Appellant’s permits were never revocable. To hold 

otherwise would be a failed attempt at carrying out the intent and requirements of the legislature 

and would result in a gross misapplication of the law found in the Short-Term Rental Unit Act and 

BL2014-951. In conclusion, the Appellant asserts that Metro Codes acted illegally by failing to 

 
19 BL2014-951 states in part, “. . .[u]pon the filing of three or more complaints within a calendar year regarding a 

STRP permit, the department of codes administration shall notify the permit holder in writing of such complaints. . . 

If the department of codes determines that violations of this section or any other ordinance or law relating to STRPs 

have occurred, the permit to operate a STRP may be revoked.” 

Case # 2020-069



11322 – 2019_A. Will – BZA Petition_Collins Legal, PLC 
11  

follow the requirements of the STRUA by not applying BL2014-951 to the governing of the 

Appellant’s STRP permits. 

2. Metro failed to comply with the requirements of Ordinance BL2014-951, 

BL2016-381, BL2016-492 by not providing fifteen (15) days’ notice prior 

to revoking the Appellant’s STRP Permit. 

 

Metro Codes failed to follow the revocation notice requirements when they arbitrarily, 

capriciously, and illegally revoked the Appellant’s permit. In BL2014-951, Metro Council 

provides the revocation procedure required to be implemented by Metro Codes when revoking 

STRP permits. Section R of BL2014-951 specifically required Metro Codes to provide notice to 

the STRP permit holder fifteen (15) days prior to revoking the permit.20 BL2014-951 states at § 3, 

“before revoking any permit, the department of codes administration shall give the permit holder 

fifteen (15) days prior to revoking the permit.”21  

As previously stated, in 2019, Ms. Coaker then took all required precautions in preparation 

to obtain four (4) non-owner-occupied short-term rental (“STRP”) permits for Units 208, 330, 242, 

and 428 (collectively referred to as “the Units”) located at the Fountains. On March 6, 2019, Ms. 

Coaker submitted four (4) STRP Permit Applications for the Units to Metropolitan Government 

of Nashville and Davidson County (“Metro”) employee, Ronya Sykes. On May 13, 2019, Metro 

employee, Teresa Moore, issued the following permits to the respective Units: 

- CASR-2019013279 – Unit 208   CASR-2019013257 – Unit 242  

- CASR-2019013276 – Unit 330   CASR-2019013248 – Unit 428 

Since obtaining the permits, the Appellants have managed and operated the Units as non-

owner occupied STRPs without incident. Nonetheless, on January 29, 2020, Ms. Coaker received 

 
20 See BL2014-951. 

21 Id. 

Case # 2020-069



11322 – 2019_A. Will – BZA Petition_Collins Legal, PLC 
12  

notice from Metro Zoning Examiner, David Frabutt, that all four (4) permits must be 

“deactivated”...  

At no point in time during the period between the Appellant submitting the initial 

applications and the Appellant becoming aware of the “deactivation” of her permits, did Metro 

Codes provide the Appellant fifteen (15) days’ notice prior to revoking / “deactivating” her 

permits. It is important to note that neither in the current ordinances nor any previous ordinances 

are there any mention of “deactivating” a permit. Meaning, there is likewise no mention of the 

procedures to “deactivate” a permit. Nonetheless, the practical effect of the deactivation of a permit 

is the same as the revocation or cancellation of a permit. As such, and in applying the revocation 

procedures outlined in BL2014-951, Metro Codes still failed to comply with the procedures to 

revoke a permit by failing to provide fifteen (15) days’ notice. 

 

CONCLUSION 

In conclusion, a plain reading of the STRUA enacted by the Tennessee State Legislature 

indicates that Metro Codes must apply the standards and requirements BL2014-951, BL2016-381, 

BL2016-492 in the governing of the Appellant’s STRP permit. Metro Codes failed to follow said 

plain reading of BL2014-951, BL2016-381, BL2016-492, and the STRUA which, in effect, 

allowed Metro to arbitrarily, capriciously, and illegally cancel / “deactivate” the Appellant’s 

permits. Neither Metro Codes nor the Zoning Administrator cannot present a proper justification 

under the local zoning code or under state law (e.g., Tenn. Code Ann. § 13-7-602(3)(A) or other 

law) for the position that they are allowed to strip away a property right in the STRPs once they 

had been issued to Ms. Coaker. As such, the Appellant would submit that Metro Codes did error 

and would request that her STRP Permits be reinstated by this Honorable Board. 

Case # 2020-069



11322 – 2019_A. Will – BZA Petition_Collins Legal, PLC 
13  

 

Respectfully submitted this the 11th day of March 2020.  

 

Collins Legal, PLC  

 

 

BY:   /s/ Grover C. Collins                                                                       

Grover C. Collins, BPR# 027997 

Seth N. Cline, BPR# 036765 

Attorneys for Defendant 

414 Union Street, Suite 1110 

Nashville, Tennessee 37219 

(615) 736-9596 – Phone 

(615) 915-0481 – Fax  

grover@collins.legal 

seth@collins.legal 

 

Case # 2020-069



From: CLAUDETT STAGER
To: Board of Zoning Appeals (Codes)
Subject: 1401 3rd Avenue North STR appeal
Date: Tuesday, March 10, 2020 8:07:30 PM

Dear BZA:

I live across the street from Peyton Stakes apartments (1401 3 rd Avenue North) on
the 4th Avenue north side. I object to Amanda Coaker’s appeal that would allow her
to operate several short term rentals in the complex.  The permits were rescinded and
should remain so.  She is essentially operating a business in a residential complex. 
This can cause problems for residents and neighboring properties.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Claudette Stager

1427 4 th Avenue North

Case # 2020-069

mailto:cstager@comcast.net
mailto:bza@nashville.gov


From: Fred Booth
To: Board of Zoning Appeals (Codes)
Subject: Appeal Case Number 2020-069
Date: Tuesday, March 10, 2020 6:47:52 PM

Dear Members of the Metropolitan Board Of Zoning Appeals:

I am writing to state my opposition to the appeal seeking reinstatement of STR permit number
20200005776. The permit pertains to four apartments in Peyton Stakes Apartments, located in
Germantown. 

The appellant does not own the four units, but rents them for the purpose of offering them as
short-term rentals. A photo of the Peyton Stakes building is actually shown on the web site of
the appellant as one of her STR locations.

The management company at Peyton Stakes does not approve of short-term rentals, and has
had complaints from other tenants regarding the units that are the subjects of this appeal. 
Furthermore, their leases forbid the subletting of apartments without permission.  Permission
was not granted by Peyton Stakes for these units to be offered as STRs. 

It seems clear that the appellant is violating the terms of the lease and the wishes of the Peyton
Stakes management.  In my opinion she is also subverting the intent of the STR permit
process. As a resident of Germantown, I believe that those engaged in the STR business
should be required to at least follow the few restrictions that exist.

For all of these reasons I urge you to deny appeal number 2020-069, and not reinstate the STR
permits listed in the appeal.

Thank you.

Fred Booth
1317 4th Avenue North
Nashville, TN  37208 

Case # 2020-069

mailto:fredbooth46@gmail.com
mailto:bza@nashville.gov


From: Richard Audet
To: board@historicgermantown.org; thecrumes@gmail.com; bobrosen2@gmail.com; Board of Zoning Appeals

(Codes)
Subject: Appeal case number:2020-069
Date: Monday, March 9, 2020 8:42:52 AM

Dear Members of the Board:

As a property owner within close proximity to th2 1401 3rd Ave. property, I am registering my strong opposition to
the STR appeal request by Amanda Coaker. I support the Zoning Administrator’s decision to rescind the STR
permits that had been granted.

Should business operations such as Ms. Coaker be allowed to continue, the impact to high apartment density
neighborhoods such as Germantown could be catastrophic. If she wishes to run a STR business she should be held
to the same regulations that govern other STR investors.

Thank you for your attention to my concern. I hope that the Board will act swiftly and strongly to lose the loopholes
that have allowed Ms. Coaker to operate her illegally obtained STR permits.

Sincerely,
Richard Audet
414 Van Buren Street
Nashville, TN 37208

Case # 2020-069

mailto:richardaudet414@gmail.com
mailto:board@historicgermantown.org
mailto:thecrumes@gmail.com
mailto:bobrosen2@gmail.com
mailto:bza@nashville.gov
mailto:bza@nashville.gov


From: Richard Crume
To: Board of Zoning Appeals (Codes)
Cc: Emma Stephens - MPPE Board; Jen Duncan - MPPE; Nathan Mastwijec - MPPE; Tommy Cramer; Abbey Hodge;

Ron Hogan; Richard Audet; O"Connell, Freddie (Council Member)
Subject: Comments on STR permit 20200005776 From the Morgan Park Place East Homeowners Association
Date: Thursday, March 12, 2020 6:11:19 PM

Dear Members of the Board of Zoning Appeals:

The Morgan Park Place East Homeowners Association is opposed to reinstatement of short-
term rental permit number 20200005776. The four units covered by this permit have been
rented as short-term rentals in direct violation of their leases, which prohibit subleasing. We
are especially concerned that these units have continued to be rented out as recently as two
weeks ago even though their permits have been rescinded.

Morgan Park Place East is located directly across the street from these units. Illegal short-term
rentals often present issues with noise, litter, and personal safety, and their presence in a
community can be a serious nuisance to both homeowners and local businesses. There have
been many instances in the Germantown and Salemtown areas where noisy short-term rentals
have kept neighbors awake during all-night drinking parties and increased litter along the
streets. Homeowners are also concerned about strangers roaming the neighborhood when the
short-term rentals are occupied. We are not opposed to legally operated owner-occupied short-
term rentals, but we oppose the reinstatement of permits that are in violation of lease
requirements.

Thank you for considering our concerns, and please don’t hesitate to contact us if you have
any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,

Richard Crume, for the Board of Directors
Morgan Park Place East Homeowners Association
310 Van Buren Street
Nashville, Tennessee 37208

Case # 2020-069

mailto:thecrumes@gmail.com
mailto:bza@nashville.gov
mailto:emmakatestephens@gmail.com
mailto:jen@brio.travel
mailto:nathanmatwijec@gmail.com
mailto:tommy.cramer@gmail.com
mailto:abbey@metropolitanpropertymgmt.com
mailto:rhogan@mindspring.com
mailto:richardaudet414@gmail.com
mailto:Freddie.OConnell@nashville.gov


From: Bob Rosen
To: Board of Zoning Appeals (Codes)
Subject: Appeal - Permit 20200005776
Date: Thursday, March 5, 2020 7:02:07 PM

Sirs:

I write in opposition to the appeal for reinstatement of STR permit number 20200005776.  As
I understand it, this permit was initially issued in error and the approval was then withdrawn. 
The appellant is seeking to have the permit reinstated.  This permit relates to four apartments
in the Peyton Stakes complex in Germantown, 208, 242, 330, and 428.

An example from my personal experience will help explain the reason for my opposition.  I
live directly across Taylor Street from Peyton Stakes, at 305 Taylor Street.  On the weekend of
February 22-23, my wife and I noted a large number of people making a lot of noise,
apparently having a party, at an apartment I subsequently determined to be #208.  The noise
was ongoing at 10:30PM on both nights, and continued until 4:00AM the following morning
on at least one of those nights.  I could not see any of the individual people other than as
silhouettes, but there was a large number of individuals in and out of the balcony, carrying on
loudly.

When I subsequently complained in person to the management of Peyton Stakes, Mr. Aston,
Assistant Manager, informed me of several things:

They have had other complaints related to the individual that sublets these apartments
for short terms;
Their leases explicitly forbid subletting of apartments without permission;
It is the position of the management company that they do not want any short-term
rentals in the complex, and are cancelling or not renewing leases when they become
aware of this practice occurring;
Finally, Mr. Aston informed me that it was OK for me to mention each of these facts in
my letter to you.

Whether or not short-term rentals are a benefit or a hazard to the community is a discussion
for another day.  However, this particular permit in the hands of this particular appellant (who,
by the way, is not an owner of the subject property) is clearly detrimental to the neighborhood
and should not be reinstated. In addition, the appellant is apparently continuing to utilize these
apartments for short-term rental despite the withdrawal of the permit.

Thank you for your consideration.

Robert A. Rosen
305 Taylor Street
Nashville

Case # 2020-069

mailto:bobrosen2@gmail.com
mailto:bza@nashville.gov


From: Ron Hogan
To: Board of Zoning Appeals (Codes)
Cc: HGN Board; Freddie O’Connell; Bob Rosen; Fred Booth; Richard Crume
Subject: Opposition to STR permit number: 20200005776
Date: Wednesday, March 11, 2020 3:27:49 PM

Dear Members of the Board of Zoning Appeals:

The Historic Germantown Neighborhood Association (HGN) would like to register its opposition to
reinstatement of the Short-Term Rental permit number 20200005776.  These four units have been
rented as STRs in direct violation of their leases.  And, it our understanding that they have continued
to be rented out as STRs after the permits were rescinded even at late as two weeks ago. 

Illegal short-term rentals often present issues with noise, litter and personal safety, and compromise
the comfort of permanent residents both within and outside the apartment complex, as aptly noted
in other opposition letters on this particular appeal.   HGN does not oppose legally-permitted STRs as
long as they comply with pertinent regulations and applicable zoning requirements. However, we do
oppose the permitting or the reinstatement of permits that are blatantly in violation of lease
requirements that the leasee knew about, yet chose to ignore. 

We respectfully request that the Board deny the appellant’s petition to reinstate the permits. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely,

Ron Hogan
HGN President

Case # 2020-069

mailto:rhogan@mindspring.com
mailto:bza@nashville.gov
mailto:board@historicgermantown.org
mailto:freddie@readyforfreddie.com
mailto:bobrosen2@gmail.com
mailto:fredbooth46@gmail.com
mailto:thecrumes@gmail.com


From: Ron Hogan
To: Board of Zoning Appeals (Codes)
Subject: Case #20200005776
Date: Monday, March 2, 2020 11:20:10 AM

Ms. Lamb,

I am the president of the Historic Germantown Neighborhood Association and many of our

association members received a notice that 4 units in Peyton Stakes Apartments (1401 3rd Ave N)
had had their Short Term Rental permits rescinded and the renter, who sub-rented those units, is
appealing to the BZA for reinstatement of those permits.  The epermit case number is: 
20200005776.

The person is challenging the Zoning Administrator’s cancellation of the four Short Term Rental
permits after a determination that the permits were issued in error and she wants the permits
reinstated.   Is there a way to find out why the permits were issued in error?  We would like to (and
will) oppose the reinstatement, but we would like to know on what grounds the Zoning
Administrator rescinded the permits.  Otherwise, we would simply be voicing our opposition, which,
other than the fact that we don’t like non-owner occupied Short-Term Rentals, would carry less
weight with the BZA as it determines whether to reinstate the permits.

Thanks in advance for your assistance.

Ron Hogan
(423) 243-4398
president@historicgermantown.org

Case # 2020-069

mailto:president@historicgermantown.org
mailto:bza@nashville.gov
mailto:president@historicgermantown.org


Case # 2020-078



Case # 2020-078



Case # 2020-078



Case # 2020-078



Case # 2020-078



Case # 2020-078



Case # 2020-078



Case # 2020-078



Case # 2020-078



Case # 2020-078



Case # 2020-078



Case # 2020-078



Case # 2020-078



Case # 2020-078



Case # 2020-078



From: Sledge, Colby (Council Member)
To: Board of Zoning Appeals (Codes)
Cc: Lamb, Emily (Codes); Cathey, Eben (Planning)
Subject: BZA items in D17
Date: Thursday, May 28, 2020 9:04:46 AM

Good morning, all,
 
Here are my positions on upcoming BZA items in District 17:
 
2020-78: I oppose this appeal for a STR permit, based on the many warnings the property received.
2020-136: I am neutral on this DADU appeal, as the property is within 90 percent of the standard lot
size for such a structure.
 
Thanks,
 
Colby
 
----
Colby Sledge
Metro Councilmember, District 17
(615) 442-3727
Sign up for my weekly newsletter here!
 

Case # 2020-078

mailto:Colby.Sledge@nashville.gov
mailto:bza@nashville.gov
mailto:Emily.Lamb@nashville.gov
mailto:Eben.Cathey@nashville.gov
https://colbysledge.nationbuilder.com/blog


Case # 2020-078



,\lt:TAtWUl,I rAi\' 4,IWI NS'-1 

Metropolitan Board of Zoning Appeals 

Metro Howard Building 

800 Second Avenue South 

Nashville, Tennessee 37210 

Appellant: _B_r_ad_M_ c_G_ a_h_u _ey�---- ---

Property Owner: _B_r _a _d _M_ c_G _a_h_u_e�y _______ _

Date: 3-16- 20 20 

Case#: _20_2 _0 _-112_______________

_Representative: _B_r_a_d_M_cG_ah_u_e�y,_ ______ _ Map & Parcel: _0 _5 _2 _11_0_0 _5 _30_ 0 ____________ _

Council District: 09 

The undersigned hereby appeals from the decision of the Zoning Administrator, wherein a Zoning Permit/Certificate of 
Zoning Compliance was refused: 

Purpose: To obtain a STRP permit 

Activity Type: Short Term Rental 

Location: 1108 Berwick Tri. 

This property is in the RS20 Zone District, in accordance with plans, application and all data heretofore filed with the 
Zoning Administrator, all of which are attached and made a part of this appeal. Said Zoning Permit/Certificate of Zoning 
Compliance was denied for the reason: 

Item A appeal, challenging the Zoning Administrator's denial of a short term rental permit. Appellant 
Reason: operated after issued short term rental permit expired. 

Section: 17.16.250 E 

Based on powers and jurisdiction of the Board of Zoning Appeals as set out in Section 17.40.180 Subsection_ of the 
M etropolitan Zoning Ordinance, a Variance, Special Exception, or M odification to Non-Conforming uses or structures is here 

by requested in the above requirement as applied to this property. 

Appellant Name: _B_r _a_d_M_ c_ G_a_h_u _e�y ________ Representative: _______________ ___ _

Phone Number: 615 351-1879 Phone Number: 

Address: 1108 Berwick Tri. Address: 

M adison, TN 37115 

Email address: songsbybdm@yahoo.com Email address: 

Appeal Fee: $100.00 

-------------------

-------------------

- -- - ---------------

Case # 2020-112



Case # 2020-112



Case # 2020-112



Case # 2020-112



Case # 2020-112



Case # 2020-112



Case # 2020-112



Case # 2020-112



Case # 2020-112



Case # 2020-112



Case # 2020-112



Case # 2020-112



Case # 2020-112



Case # 2020-112



Case #2020-112



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



From: Toombs, Kyonzté (Council Member)
To: Board of Zoning Appeals (Codes)
Subject: 2136 24th Avenue STR Appeal
Date: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 9:42:02 AM

Jon and Board Members,

I am writing in support of Mr. Rothrauff’s appeal of the revocation of his NOOSTR permit.
On the advice of his attorney, Mr. Rothrauff and his wife changed the ownership of their home
to an LLC, which only consists of him and his wife. 

In this instance, the homeowners should not be penalized for relying on the advice of their
attorney. Given this unique circumstance and that the original homeowners are the only
members of the LLC, I do not oppose the reinstatement of the Rothrauffs’ NOOSTR permit. 

I’d also like to note that these circumstances and my opinion are specific to these
homeowners, and my support is not an indication of my stance on future appeals.

Thank you.

Kyonzte Toombs
Metro Councilwoman, District 2
Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County
One Public Square, Suite 204
P.O. Box 196300
Nashville, TN 37201
kyonzte.toombs@nashville.gov
Tel:615-601-5127

Case # 2020-130

mailto:Kyonzte.Toombs@nashville.gov
mailto:bza@nashville.gov


1 

 OPERATING AGREEMENT 

MEMBER MANAGED 

DATE:  October 9, 2018 

PARTIES: P Thomas (Tom) Rothrauff, Christina (Tina) Rothrauff 

RECITAL:  
The parties to this agreement (the "Members") are entering into this agreement for the purpose of 

forming a limited liability company under the Limited Liability Company Act of the state of 

Tennessee (the “Act”).  

AGREEMENTS: 

1. FORMATION

1.1 Name. The name of this limited liability company (the "Company") is T&T LLC. 

1.2 Articles of Organization. Articles of organization for the Company were filed with the Secretary 

of State for the state of Tennessee on August 30, 2018.  

1.3 Duration. The Company will exist until dissolved as provided in this agreement. 

1.4 Principal Office. The Company’s principal office will initially be at 805 3rd Ave N., Nashville, 

TN 37201, but it may be relocated by the Members at any time.  

1.5 Designated Office and Agent for Service of Process. The Company's initial designated office 

will be at 805 3rd Ave N., Nashville, TN 37201, and the name of its initial agent for service of 

process at that address will be Tina Rothrauff. The Company’s designated office and its agent for 

service of process may only be changed by filing notice of the change with the Secretary of State of 

the state in which the articles of organization of the Company were filed.  

1.6 Purposes and Powers. The Company is formed for the purpose of engaging in the business of 

real estate rentals. The Company has the power to do all things necessary, incident, or in furtherance 

of that business. 

Case # 2020-130



2 
 

ii  

 

1.7 Title to Assets. Title to all assets of the Company will be held in the name of the Company. No 

Member has any right to the assets of the Company or any ownership interest in those assets except 

indirectly as a result of the Member’s ownership of an interest in the Company. No Member has any 

right to partition any assets of the Company or any right to receive any specific assets upon 

liquidation of the Company or upon any other distribution from the Company.  

 

2. MEMBERS, CONTRIBUTIONS AND INTERESTS  
2.1 Initial Members. The names and addresses of the Members of the Company, the amounts of 

their initial capital contributions, and their initial Ownership Interests are:  

 Tom Rothrauff 

805 3rd Ave N 

Nashville, TN 37201 

50% 

 Tina Rothrauff 

805 3rd Ave N 

Nashville, TN  37201 

50% 

 

 

Each Member’s Ownership Interest at any time will be determined by the ratio of the Member’s 

aggregate capital contributions to the aggregate capital contributions of all Members.  

 

2.2 Initial Capital Contributions. The initial capital contributions of * and * must be paid to the 

Company, in cash, immediately after all parties have signed this agreement. The initial capital 

contribution of * must be made by *’s transferring to the Company the assets listed on the attached 

Exhibit A. The transfer of the assets must be made immediately after all parties have signed this 

agreement by *’s executing and delivering to the Company such documents as may be necessary to 

transfer the assets listed on the attached Exhibit A to the Company free and clear of all liens and 

encumbrances. The transfer documents must include warranties of title and good right to transfer.  

Case # 2020-130



3 
 

iii  

 

2.3 Additional Members. Except as otherwise provided in the section of this agreement relating to 

substitution, additional Members of the Company may be admitted only with the consent of all 

Members.  

 

2.4 Additional Contributions. Except as otherwise provided in the Act, no Member will be required 

to contribute additional capital to the Company. Additional capital contributions to the Company 

may be made by the Members only with the Members’ unanimous approval. If the Members approve 

additional capital contributions, the Members must set a maximum amount for such contributions 

that will be accepted from the Members. Each Member will then have the right, but not the 

obligation, to contribute a pro rata share of the maximum based upon the Member’s Ownership 

Interest. If any Member elects to contribute less than the Member's pro rata share of the maximum, 

the other Members may contribute the difference on a pro rata basis in accordance with their 

Ownership Interests or on any other basis they may agree upon.  

 

2.5 No Interest on Capital Contributions. No interest will be paid on capital contributions.  

 

2.6 Capital Accounts. An individual capital account will be maintained for each Member. A 

Member's capital account will be credited with all capital contributions made by the Member and 

with all income and gain (including any income exempt from federal income tax) allocated to the 

Member. A Member’s capital account will be charged with the amount of all distributions made to 

the Member and with all losses and deductions (including deductions attributable to tax-exempt 

income) allocated to the Member. Members’ capital accounts must be maintained in accordance with 

the federal income tax accounting principles prescribed in Treasury Regulations §1.704-1(b)(2)(iv).  

 

3. ALLOCATION OF PROFITS AND LOSSES  

 

3.1 Determination. The net profit or net loss of the Company for each fiscal year will be determined 

according to the accounting principles employed in the preparation of the Company’s federal income 

tax information return for that fiscal year. In computing net profit or net loss for purposes of 

allocation among the Members, no special provision will be made for tax-exempt or partially tax-

exempt income of the Company, and all items of the Company’s income, gain, loss, or deduction 

required to be separately stated under IRC §703(a)(1) will be included in the net profit or net loss of 

the Company.  

 

3.2 Allocation of Net Profits and Net Losses. The net profit or net loss of the Company for a fiscal 

year will be allocated among the Members in proportion to their Ownership Interests. 

Case # 2020-130



4 
 

iv  

 

3.3 Allocations Solely for Tax Purposes. In accordance with IRC §704(c) and the corresponding 

regulations, income, gain, loss, and deduction with respect to any property contributed to the capital 

of the Company will be allocated among the Members, solely for income tax purposes, so as to take 

into account any variation between the adjusted basis of such property for federal income tax 

purposes in the hands of the Company and the agreed value of such property as set forth in this 

agreement, or in any document entered into at the time an additional contribution is made to the 

Company. Any elections or other decisions relating to the allocations to be made under this section 

will be made by action of the Members. The allocations to be made under this section are solely for 

purposes of federal, state, and local income taxes and will not affect, or in any way be taken into 

account in computing, any Member's capital account, allocable share of the net profits and net losses 

of the Company, or right to distributions.  

 

3.4 Prorates. If a Member has not been a Member during a full fiscal year of the Company, or if a 

Member's Ownership Interest in the Company changes during a fiscal year, the net profit or net loss 

for the year will be allocated to the Member based only on the period of time during which the 

Member was a Member or held a particular Ownership Interest. In determining a Member's share of 

the net profit or net loss for a fiscal year, the Members may allocate the net profit or net loss ratably 

on a daily basis using the Company's usual method of accounting. Alternatively, the Members may 

separate the Company's fiscal year into two or more segments and allocate the net profits or net 

losses for each segment among the persons who were Members, or who held particular Ownership 

Interests, during each segment based upon their Ownership Interests during that segment.  

 

4. DISTRIBUTIONS  

 

4.1 Distributions to Pay Taxes. To enable the Members to pay taxes on income of the Company that 

is taxable to the Members, the Company must make cash distributions to the Members. During each 

fiscal year the Company must distribute an amount equal to the product of (a) the highest aggregate 

rate of federal, state, and local income and self-employment tax imposed on the Company’s income 

for that fiscal year (taking into account the deductibility of state and local income taxes for federal 

income tax purposes) allocated to any Member who was a Member for the full fiscal year times (b) 

the amount of the taxable income of the Company allocated to all Members for that fiscal year. 

Distributions must be paid at least quarterly during each fiscal year at times that coincide with the 

Members’ payment of estimated taxes, and the amount of each distribution will be based upon the 

anticipated taxable income of the Company for the fiscal year of the distribution and the anticipated 

tax rates of Members, as determined at the time the distribution is made. The Company's obligation 

to make distributions under this section is subject to the restrictions governing distributions under the 

Act.  

 

4.2 Additional Distributions. Subject to the restrictions governing distributions under the Act, 

additional distributions of cash or property may be made from time to time by the Company to the 

Members, at such times and in such amounts as the Members determine. 

Case # 2020-130



5 
 

v  

 

4.3 Allocation of Distributions. All distributions to pay taxes and additional distributions must be 

made to Members in proportion to their Ownership Interests.  

 

5. ADMINISTRATION OF COMPANY BUSINESS  

 

5.1 Management. All Members have the right to participate in the management and conduct of the 

Company’s business. Subject to the limitations imposed by this agreement or by action of the 

Members, each Member is an agent of the Company and has authority to bind the Company in the 

ordinary course of the Company’s business.  

 

5.2 Actions by Members. Except as otherwise provided in this agreement, all decisions requiring 

action of the Members or relating to the business or affairs of the Company will be decided by the 

affirmative vote or consent of Members holding a majority of the Ownership Interests. Members may 

act with or without a meeting, and any Member may participate in any meeting by written proxy or 

by any means of communication reasonable under the circumstances.  

 

5.3 Approval of Other Members Required. In addition to the other actions requiring unanimous 

Member approval under the terms of this agreement, no Member has authority to do any of the 

following without the prior written consent of all other Members:  

 

5.3.1 To sell, lease, exchange, mortgage, pledge, or otherwise transfer or dispose of all or 

substantially all of the property or assets of the Company;  

5.3.2 To merge the Company with any other entity;  

 

5.3.3 To amend the articles of organization of the Company or this agreement;  

 

5.3.4 To incur indebtedness by the Company other than in the ordinary course of business;  

 

5.3.5 To authorize a transaction involving an actual or potential conflict of interest between a 

Member and the Company;  

 

5.3.6 To change the nature of the business of the Company; or  

 

5.3.7 To commence a voluntary bankruptcy case for the Company.  

 

5.4 Devotion of Time; Outside Activities. Each of the Members must devote so much time and 

attention to the business of the Company as the Members agree is appropriate. Members may engage 

in business and investment activities outside the Company, and neither the  

Case # 2020-130



6 
 

vi  

 

Company nor the other Members have any rights to the property, profits, or benefits of such 

activities. But no Member may, without the consent of all other Members, enter into any business or 

investment activity that is competitive with the business of the Company, or use any property or 

assets of the Company other than for the operation of the Company’s business. For this purpose, the 

property and assets of the Company include, without limitation, information developed for the 

Company, opportunities offered to the Company, and other information or opportunities entrusted to 

a Member as a result of being a Member of the Company.  

 

5.5 Compensation and Reimbursement. Members who render services to the Company are entitled 

to such compensation as may be agreed upon by the Members from time to time. Any compensation 

paid to a Member for services rendered will be treated as an expense of the Company and a 

guaranteed payment within the meaning of IRC §707(c), and the amount of the compensation will 

not be charged against the share of profits of the Company that would otherwise be allocated to the 

Member. Members are also entitled to reimbursement from the Company for reasonable expenses 

incurred on behalf of the Company, including expenses incurred in the formation, dissolution, and 

liquidation of the Company.  

 

5.6 Self Interest. A Member does not violate any duty or obligation to the Company merely as a 

result of engaging in conduct that furthers the interest of the Member. A Member may lend money or 

transact other business with the Company, and, in this case, the rights and obligations of the Member 

will be the same as those of a person who is not a Member, so long as the loan or other transaction 

has been approved or ratified by the Members. Unless otherwise provided by applicable law, a 

Member with a financial interest in the outcome of a particular action is nevertheless entitled to vote 

on such action.  

 

6. ACCOUNTING AND RECORDS  

 

6.1 Books of Account. The Members must keep such books and records relating to the operation of 

the Company as are appropriate and adequate for the Company's business and for the carrying out of 

this agreement. At a minimum, the following must be maintained at the principal office of the 

Company: (a) financial statements for the three most recent fiscal years; (b) federal, state, and local 

income tax returns for the three most recent fiscal years; (c) a register showing the current names and 

addresses of the Members; (d) a copy of the Company's articles of organization and any amendments 

thereto; (e) this agreement and any amendments thereto; (f) minutes of any meetings of Members; 

and (g) consents to action by Members. Each Member will have access to all such books and records 

at all times.  

 

6.2 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Company will be the calendar year.  

 

6.3 Accounting Reports. Within 90 days after the close of each fiscal year, Company must deliver to 

each Member an unaudited report of the activities of the Company for the preceding fiscal year, 

including a copy of a balance sheet of the Company as of the end of the year and a profit and loss 

statement for the year. 

Case # 2020-130



7 
 

vii  

 

6.4 Tax Returns. The Company must prepare and file on a timely basis all required federal, state, 

and local income tax and other tax returns. Within 90 days after the end of each fiscal year, the 

Company must deliver to each Member a Schedule K-1, showing the amounts of any distributions, 

contributions, income, gain, loss, deductions, or credits allocated to the Member during the fiscal 

year.  

 

6.5 Tax Matters Partner. Anytime the Company has more than 10 Members, any Member is an 

entity other than an estate or a C corporation, or any Member is a nonresident alien individual, the 

Members must designate one of the Members as the tax matters partner of the Company in 

accordance with IRC §6231(a)(7) and keep such designation in effect at all times.  

 

7. DISSOCIATION AND DISSOLUTION  

 

7.1 Withdrawal. A Member may withdraw from the Company only after giving notice of 

withdrawal to the other Members at least 90 days prior to the effective date of the withdrawal.  

 

7.2 Expulsion. A Member may be expelled from the Company by an affirmative vote of the 

Members holding a majority of the Ownership Interests held by Members other than the expelled 

Member if the expelled Member has been guilty of wrongful conduct that adversely and materially 

affects the business or affairs of the Company, or the expelled Member has willfully or persistently 

committed a material breach of the articles of organization of the Company or this agreement or has 

otherwise breached a duty owed to the Company or to the other Members to the extent that it is not 

reasonably practicable to carry on the business or affairs of the Company with that Member. The 

right to expel a Member under the provisions of this section does not limit or adversely affect any 

right or power of the Company or the other Members to recover any damages from the expelled 

Member or to pursue other remedies permitted under applicable law or in equity. In addition to any 

other remedies, the Company or the other Members may offset any such damages against any 

amounts otherwise distributable or payable to the expelled Member.  

 

7.3 Events of Dissolution. Except as otherwise provided in this agreement, the Company will 

dissolve upon the earliest of: (a) the death, incompetence, withdrawal, expulsion, bankruptcy, or 

dissolution of any Member; (b) approval of a dissolution of the Company by unanimous consent of 

the Members; or (c) at such time as the Company has no members.  

 

7.4 Effect of Member’s Dissociation. Within 120 days following the death, incompetence, 

withdrawal, expulsion, bankruptcy, or dissolution of a Member, the other Members (whether one or 

more) may elect to continue the Company by themselves or with others, and to cause the Company to 

purchase the interest of the dissociating Member pursuant to the provisions of the sections of this 

agreement relating to purchase price and payment for member's interest. Making the election is in the 

sole discretion of the other Members and  

Case # 2020-130



8 
 

viii  

 

requires the consent of other Members holding a majority of the Ownership Interests held by the 

other Members. Notice of the election must be given in writing to the dissociating Member or the 

dissociating Member’s successor in interest promptly after the election is made. If the other Members 

do not so elect, the Company will be dissolved.  

 

7.5 Purchase Price. If the other Members elect to cause the Company to purchase the interest of a 

dissociating Member under the section of this agreement relating to effect of member’s dissociation, 

the purchase price of the dissociating Member's interest in the Company will be determined by 

agreement between the other Members (acting by vote) and the dissociating Member. If an 

agreement on the purchase price is not reached within 30 days following the election to purchase the 

interest of the dissociating Member, the interest must be valued by a third party appraiser selected by 

the other Members who is reasonably acceptable to the dissociating Member, and the purchase price 

will be the value determined in that appraisal. In appraising the interest to be purchased, the appraiser 

must determine the fair market value of the interest as of the date of the event of dissociation. In 

determining the value, the appraiser must consider the greater of the liquidation value of the 

Company or the value of the Company based upon a sale of the Company as a going concern. The 

appraiser must also consider appropriate minority interest, lack of marketability, and other discounts. 

If the appraisal is not completed within 120 days following the election to purchase the interest of the 

dissociating Member, either the other Members or the dissociating Member may apply to a court of 

competent jurisdiction for the appointment of another appraiser, in which case the court-appointed 

appraiser must appraise the interest of the dissociating Member in accordance with the standards set 

forth in this section, and the purchase price will be the value determined in that appraisal.  

 

7.6 Payment for Member's Interest. The purchase price for the interest of a Member purchased 

under the section of this agreement relating to effect of member’s dissociation will be paid as 

follows:  

 

7.6.1 The purchase price will bear interest from the date of the election of the other Members to 

purchase the dissociating Member’s interest at the prime rate of interest in effect on the date 

of the election as quoted in The Wall Street Journal or, if that publication is not available, 

another reputable national publication selected by the other Members that is reasonably 

acceptable to the dissociating Member.  

 

7.6.2 The purchase price will be payable in accordance with the terms of a promissory note of the 

Company providing for the payment of the principal amount in 60 equal monthly 

installments, including interest on the unpaid balance, with the first installment to be due one 

month after the date of closing and an additional installment to be due on the same day of 

each month thereafter until the promissory note is paid in full. The promissory note will bear 

interest from the date of the closing at the rate specified above. The promissory note must 

provide that if any installment is not paid when due, the holder may declare the entire 

remaining balance, together with all accrued interest,  

Case # 2020-130



9 
 

ix  

 

immediately due and payable. Partial or complete prepayment of the remaining balance due under the 

promissory note will be permitted at any time without penalty, provided that any partial 

prepayment will not affect the amount or regularity of payments coming due thereafter.  

 

7.6.3 The purchase must be closed within 30 days following the determination of the purchase price. 

At the closing, the dissociating Member must sign and deliver to the Company a written 

assignment transferring the entire interest of the dissociating Member in the Company to the 

Company free and clear of all encumbrances. Such assignment must contain warranties of 

title and good right to transfer. At the closing, the Company must pay the accrued interest on 

the purchase price then due to the dissociating Member, and the Company must also deliver 

its promissory note to the dissociating Member. Each of the other Members must sign and 

deliver to the dissociating Member a security agreement granting a security interest to the 

dissociating Member in that percentage of the interest of each of the other Members in the 

Company equal to the Ownership Interest of the dissociating Member being purchased by the 

Company. The security agreement must be in a form reasonably acceptable to the attorney 

for the dissociating Member and will secure payment of the promissory note by the 

Company. The security agreement must provide that if there is a default in the payment of the 

promissory note by the Company and the security interest is foreclosed or the interest in the 

Company is retained by the secured party in satisfaction of the indebtedness, the interest may 

be transferred without the necessity of tendering the interest to the Company under the 

section of this agreement relating to tender of interest and the person acquiring the interest in 

the Company will be admitted as a member of the Company without further consent of the 

Members being required.  

 

As an example of the operation of this provision, if the Ownership Interest of a dissociating 

Member was 25% and there are three other Members, each with an 

Ownership Interest of 33-1/3% after the purchase of the dissociating 

Member’s Ownership Interest by the Company, each of the other Members 

would be required to grant the dissociating Member a security interest in an 

Ownership Interest of 8-1/3%.  

 

7.7 Effect of Purchase of Member's Interest. A dissociating Member will cease to be a Member 

upon the election of the other Members to cause the Company to purchase the dissociating Member's 

interest pursuant to the section of this agreement relating to effect of member’s dissociation. 

Thereafter, the dissociating Member will have no rights as a Member in the Company, except the 

right to have the dissociating Member’s interest purchased in accordance with the terms of this 

agreement.  

 

7.8 Successor in Interest. For purposes of this section relating to dissociation and dissolution, the 

term “dissociating Member” includes the dissociating Member’s successor in interest. 

Case # 2020-130



10 
 

x  

 

8. WINDING UP AND LIQUIDATION  

 

8.1 Liquidation Upon Dissolution. Upon the dissolution of the Company, the Members must wind 

up the affairs of the Company unless the dissolution results from the dissociation of a Member and 

the other Members elect to continue the Company under the provisions of this agreement relating to 

effect of member’s dissociation. If the affairs of the Company are wound up, a full account must be 

taken of the assets and liabilities of the Company, and the assets of the Company must be promptly 

liquidated. Following liquidation of the assets of the Company, the proceeds must be applied and 

distributed in the following order of priority:  

 

8.1.1 To creditors of the Company in satisfaction of liabilities and obligations of the Company, 

including, to the extent permitted by law, liabilities and obligations owed to Members as 

creditors (except liabilities for unpaid distributions);  

 

8.1.2 To any reserves set up for contingent or unliquidated liabilities or obligations of the Company 

deemed reasonably necessary by the Members, which reserves may be paid over to an escrow 

agent by the Members to be held by such escrow agent for disbursement in satisfaction of the 

liabilities and obligations of the Company, with any excess being distributed to the Members 

as provided below; and  

 

8.1.3 To Members in proportion to the positive balances of their capital accounts, after taking into 

account all adjustments made to capital accounts for the fiscal year during which the 

distributions to Members are made.  

 

8.2 Distribution of Property in Kind. With approval of the Members, property of the Company 

may be distributed in kind in the process of winding up and liquidation. Any property distributed in 

kind will be valued and treated for the Company’s accounting purposes, in accordance with Treasury 

Regulations §1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(e)(1), as though the property distributed had been sold at fair market 

value on the date of distribution. If property is distributed in kind, the difference between the fair 

market value of the property and its adjusted tax basis will, solely for the Company’s accounting 

purposes and to adjust the Members’ capital accounts, be treated as a gain or loss on the sale of the 

property and will be credited or charged to the Members’ capital accounts in the manner specified in 

the section of this agreement relating to capital accounts.  

 

8.3 Negative Capital Accounts. If any Member has a negative balance in the Member's capital 

account upon liquidation of the Company, the Member will have no obligation to make any 

contribution to the capital of the Company to make up the deficit, and the deficit will not be 

considered a debt owed to the Company or any other person for any purpose.  

 

  

Case # 2020-130



11 
 

9. TRANSFER OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 

 

xi 

 

9.1 General Restrictions. No Member may transfer all or any part of such Member's interest as a 

member of the Company except as permitted in this agreement. Any purported transfer of an interest 

or a part of an interest in violation of the terms of this agreement will be null and void and of no 

effect. For purposes of this section a “transfer” includes a sale, exchange, pledge, or other 

disposition, voluntarily or by operation of law.  

 

9.2 Permitted Transfers. A Member may transfer all or a part of the Member's interest in the 

Company with the prior written consent of all other Members. If the other Members do not consent 

to a particular transfer, the Member may transfer all or a part of the Member's interest if such interest 

or part has been tendered for sale to the Company in accordance with the section of this agreement 

relating to tender of interest, the tender has not been accepted within the time limit set forth in that 

section, the transfer is made to the transferee named in the notice of tender within 180 days after the 

notice of tender is effective, and the transfer is at a price and upon terms no more favorable to the 

transferee than those set forth in the notice of tender.  

 

9.3 Tender of Interest. If a Member wishes to transfer all or part of the Member's interest in the 

Company and the other Members do not consent, the interest or the part to be transferred must be 

tendered to the Company by giving written notice of such tender to the Company. Such notice must 

contain the name and address of the proposed transferee, the price to be paid by the proposed 

transferee for the interest, if any, and the terms of the proposed transfer. If a Member's interest is 

transferred by operation of law, the successor in interest to the transferring Member may give the 

required notice of tender to the Company at any time following the transfer, and such successor in 

interest will be deemed to have given the notice of tender at the time any other Member gives notice 

to the successor in interest and to all other Members of the failure to give the notice of tender. Within 

30 days after a notice of tender is given, the other Members may accept the tender on behalf of the 

Company and have the Company purchase the interest tendered for the lesser of the price set forth in 

the notice of tender (if the proposed transfer is to be by sale) or the price applicable to the purchase 

of a Member's interest pursuant to the section of this agreement relating to the effect of member’s 

dissociation. The tender must be accepted on behalf of the Company by giving notice of acceptance 

to the transferring Member or the transferring Member’s successor in interest. The purchase may, at 

the option of the other Members, be on the terms set forth in the notice of tender, if any, or the terms 

set forth in the section of this agreement relating to payment for member's interest. For purposes of 

those provisions, the date of the acceptance of tender will be deemed to be the date on which the 

other Members elected to purchase the interest of a dissociating Member.  

 

9.4 Effect of Tender. The Member tendering the interest will cease to be a Member with respect to 

the tendered interest upon an acceptance of the tender by the Company. Thereafter, the Member 

tendering the interest will have no rights as a Member in the Company, except the right to have the 

tendered interest purchased in accordance with the terms of this agreement. 

 

Case # 2020-130



12 
 

xii  

 

9.5 Substitution. If the interest of a Member is transferred, the transferee of the interest may be 

admitted as a Member of the Company if the transferee executes and delivers to the Company a 

written agreement to be bound by all of the terms and provisions of this agreement. But the transferee 

is entitled to be admitted as a Member only if all of the other Members consent to the admission of 

the transferee as a Member, and this consent may be withheld reasonably or unreasonably. If a 

Member who is the only member of the Company transfers the Member’s entire interest, the 

transferee will be admitted as a Member of the Company effective upon the transfer without the 

requirement of an agreement to be bound by this agreement or consent. If the transferee is not 

admitted as a Member, the transferee will have the right only to receive, to the extent assigned, the 

distributions from the Company to which the transferor would be entitled. Such transferee will not 

have the right to exercise the rights of a Member, including, without limitation, the right to vote or 

inspect or obtain records of the Company.  

 

10. INDEMNIFICATION AND LIABILITY LIMITATION  

 

10.1 Indemnification. Except as otherwise provided in this section, the Company must indemnify 

each of the Members to the fullest extent permissible under the law of the state in which the articles 

of organization of the Company have been filed, as the same exists or may hereafter be amended, 

against all liability, loss, and costs (including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees) incurred or suffered 

by the Member by reason of or arising from the fact that the Member is or was a member of the 

Company, or is or was serving at the request of the Company as a manager, member, director, 

officer, partner, trustee, employee, or agent of another foreign or domestic limited liability company, 

corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, benefit plan, or other enterprise. The Company may, by 

action of the Members, provide indemnification to employees and agents of the Company who are 

not Members. The indemnification provided in this section is not exclusive of any other rights to 

which any person may be entitled under any statute, agreement, resolution of Members, contract, or 

otherwise. But despite any other provision of this agreement, the Company has no obligation to 

indemnify a Member for:  

 

10.1.1 Any breach of the Member's duty of loyalty to the Company;  

 

10.1.2 Acts or omissions not in good faith that involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation 

of law;  

 

10.1.3 Any unlawful distribution under the Act; or  

 

10.1.4 Any transaction in which the Member derives improper personal benefit.  

 

10.2 Limitation of Liability. No Member of the Company is liable to the Company or to the other 

Members for monetary damages resulting from the Member’s conduct as a Member except to the 

extent that the Act, as it now exists or may be amended in the future, prohibits the 

Case # 2020-130



13 
 

xiii  

 

elimination or limitation of liability of members of limited liability companies. No repeal or 

amendment of this section or of the Act will adversely affect any right or protection of a Member for 

actions or omissions prior to the repeal or amendment.  

 

11. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS  

 

11.1 Amendment. The Members may amend or repeal all or part of this agreement by unanimous 

written agreement. This agreement may not be amended or repealed by oral agreement of the 

Members.  

 

11.2 Binding Effect. The provisions of this agreement will be binding upon and will inure to the 

benefit of the heirs, personal representatives, successors, and assigns of the Members. But this 

section may not be construed as a modification of any restriction on transfer set forth in this 

agreement.  

 

11.3 Notice. Except as otherwise provided in other sections of this agreement, any notice or other 

communication required or permitted to be given under this agreement must be in writing and must 

be mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid. Notices addressed to a 

Member must be addressed to the Member’s address listed in the section of this agreement relating to 

initial members, or if there is no such address listed for a Member, the address of the Member shown 

on the records of the Company. Notices addressed to the Company must be addressed to its principal 

office. The address of a Member or the Company to which notices or other communications are to be 

mailed may be changed from time to time by the Member’s or the Company’s giving written notice 

to the other Members and the Company. All notices and other communications will be deemed to be 

given at the expiration of three days after the date of mailing.  

 

11.4 Litigation Expense. If any legal proceeding is commenced for the purpose of interpreting or 

enforcing any provision of this agreement, including any proceeding in the United States Bankruptcy 

Court, the prevailing party in such proceeding will be entitled to recover a reasonable attorney's fee 

in such proceeding, or any appeal thereof, to be set by the court without the necessity of hearing 

testimony or receiving evidence, in addition to the costs and disbursements allowed by law.  

 

11.5 Additional Documents. Each Member must execute such additional documents and take such 

actions as are reasonably requested by the other Members in order to complete or confirm the 

transactions contemplated by this agreement.  

 

11.6 Counterparts. This agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, which together 

will constitute one agreement. 

Case # 2020-130



14 
 

xiv  

 

11.7 Governing Law. This agreement will be governed by the law of the state in which the articles 

of organization of the Company have been filed.  

 

11.8 Severability. If any provision of this agreement is invalid or unenforceable, it will not affect the 

remaining provisions.  

 

11.9 Third-Party Beneficiaries. The provisions of this agreement are intended solely for the benefit 

of the Members and create no rights or obligations enforceable by any third party, including creditors 

of the Company, except as otherwise provided by applicable law.  

 

11.10 Authority. Each individual executing this agreement on behalf of a corporation or other entity 

warrants that he or she is authorized to do so and that this agreement constitutes a legally binding 

obligation of the corporation or other entity that the individual represents.  

 

11.11 Counsel. This agreement has been drafted by * (the “Attorney”), who represents * in 

connection with the creation of the Company. * and * each understand that the Attorney can 

represent only one party in connection with this matter, that the Attorney represents * and does 

not represent them, and that they have been advised by the Attorney that they should retain 

attorneys of their own choice in connection with this matter. 

Case # 2020-130



From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Cc: 

Subject: 

Attachments: 

Tom Rothrauff <rothraufft@gmail.com> 

Wednesday, May 13, 2020 10:25 AM 

Board of Zoning Appeals (Codes) 

Shepherd, Jessica (Codes) 

Case number 2020-130 

short term rental application 2136 as of Feb 6 2019.pdf; STRP ORIGINAL Feb 2019 

2136.pdf; Quit claim 2136 24th Ave N.pdf; STRP RENEWAL 2020 FOR 2136 24th Ave 

N.jpeg; Operating Agreement.pdf

Feb. 6 2019, my wife and I, P. Thomas and Christina Rothrauff, applied for a non-owner occupied short term rental 

permit (T 20190077486) for 2136 24th Ave N. See attachment above for application. 

A short term rental permit was issued Feb 20, 2019. See attachement STRP original Feb 2019. 

Based on the advice of our attorney and CPA, we quit claimed the property to T & T LLC which had been formed Oct. 

2018 for the purpose of real estate investment. It was recorded on July 15, 2019. See attached Quit Claim. 

Feb 2020, we were issued a renewal STRP. However the name on the permit does not match the application or the initial 

STRP issued Feb 20 2019. The permit excludes my wife's name Christina Rothrauff and only includes mine, P Thomas 

Rothrauff. See attachment for renewal permit 2020. Inadvertently, this omission was not noticed 

At the time we Quit Claimed the property we were not aware that this was technically a change of ownership since T & 

T LLC membership is 100% P Thomas and Christina Rothrauff. See attachment Operating agreement. Also a renewal 

permit was issued Feb 2020. The first we were aware of the violation was March 27, 2010 when we received the Metro 

letter. 

We have always been prompt with paying all the applicable taxes to the city. 

I have communicated with our councilwoman, Kyonzte Toombs, and she has given her support for reinstating the permit 

immediately. You should have received her support under separate cover from her. 

We acknowledge ignorance of the ordinance is not justification for the violation. However we are imploring the board to 

give leniency since the initial recorded ownership and the T & T LLC ownership are exactly the same and allow the STRP 

to be reinstated immediately so we do not experience irreparable financial harm not being able to secure a STRP until 

one year from last booking. 

Thank you, 

Tom Rothrauff 

T & T LLC 

805 3rd Ave N. 

Nashville, TN 37201 

615-319-6077

1 

Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Cc: 

Subject: 

Attachments: 

Tom Rothrauff <rothraufft@gmail.com> 

Wednesday, May 13, 2020 10:25 AM 

Board of Zoning Appeals (Codes) 

Shepherd, Jessica (Codes) 

Case number 2020-130 

short term rental application 2136 as of Feb 6 2019.pdf; STRP ORIGINAL Feb 2019 

2136.pdf; Quit claim 2136 24th Ave N.pdf; STRP RENEWAL 2020 FOR 2136 24th Ave 

N.jpeg; Operating Agreement.pdf

Feb. 6 2019, my wife and I, P. Thomas and Christina Rothrauff, applied for a non-owner occupied short term rental 

permit (T 20190077486) for 2136 24th Ave N. See attachment above for application. 

A short term rental permit was issued Feb 20, 2019. See attachement STRP original Feb 2019. 

Based on the advice of our attorney and CPA, we quit claimed the property to T & T LLC which had been formed Oct. 

2018 for the purpose of real estate investment. It was recorded on July 15, 2019. See attached Quit Claim. 

Feb 2020, we were issued a renewal STRP. However the name on the permit does not match the application or the initial 

STRP issued Feb 20 2019. The permit excludes my wife's name Christina Rothrauff and only includes mine, P Thomas 

Rothrauff. See attachment for renewal permit 2020. Inadvertently, this omission was not noticed 

At the time we Quit Claimed the property we were not aware that this was technically a change of ownership since T & 

T LLC membership is 100% P Thomas and Christina Rothrauff. See attachment Operating agreement. Also a renewal 

permit was issued Feb 2020. The first we were aware of the violation was March 27, 2010 when we received the Metro 

letter. 

We have always been prompt with paying all the applicable taxes to the city. 

I have communicated with our councilwoman, Kyonzte Toombs, and she has given her support for reinstating the permit 

immediately. You should have received her support under separate cover from her. 

We acknowledge ignorance of the ordinance is not justification for the violation. However we are imploring the board to 

give leniency since the initial recorded ownership and the T & T LLC ownership are exactly the same and allow the STRP 

to be reinstated immediately so we do not experience irreparable financial harm not being able to secure a STRP until 

one year from last booking. 

Thank you, 

Tom Rothrauff 

T & T LLC 

805 3rd Ave N. 

Nashville, TN 37201 

615-319-6077

1 

Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



1 

 OPERATING AGREEMENT 

MEMBER MANAGED 

DATE:  October 9, 2018 

PARTIES: P Thomas (Tom) Rothrauff, Christina (Tina) Rothrauff 

RECITAL:  
The parties to this agreement (the "Members") are entering into this agreement for the purpose of 

forming a limited liability company under the Limited Liability Company Act of the state of 

Tennessee (the “Act”).  

AGREEMENTS: 

1. FORMATION

1.1 Name. The name of this limited liability company (the "Company") is T&T LLC. 

1.2 Articles of Organization. Articles of organization for the Company were filed with the Secretary 

of State for the state of Tennessee on August 30, 2018.  

1.3 Duration. The Company will exist until dissolved as provided in this agreement. 

1.4 Principal Office. The Company’s principal office will initially be at 805 3rd Ave N., Nashville, 

TN 37201, but it may be relocated by the Members at any time.  

1.5 Designated Office and Agent for Service of Process. The Company's initial designated office 

will be at 805 3rd Ave N., Nashville, TN 37201, and the name of its initial agent for service of 

process at that address will be Tina Rothrauff. The Company’s designated office and its agent for 

service of process may only be changed by filing notice of the change with the Secretary of State of 

the state in which the articles of organization of the Company were filed.  

1.6 Purposes and Powers. The Company is formed for the purpose of engaging in the business of 

real estate rentals. The Company has the power to do all things necessary, incident, or in furtherance 

of that business. 

Case # 2020-130



2 
 

ii  

 

1.7 Title to Assets. Title to all assets of the Company will be held in the name of the Company. No 

Member has any right to the assets of the Company or any ownership interest in those assets except 

indirectly as a result of the Member’s ownership of an interest in the Company. No Member has any 

right to partition any assets of the Company or any right to receive any specific assets upon 

liquidation of the Company or upon any other distribution from the Company.  

 

2. MEMBERS, CONTRIBUTIONS AND INTERESTS  
2.1 Initial Members. The names and addresses of the Members of the Company, the amounts of 

their initial capital contributions, and their initial Ownership Interests are:  

 Tom Rothrauff 

805 3rd Ave N 

Nashville, TN 37201 

50% 

 Tina Rothrauff 

805 3rd Ave N 

Nashville, TN  37201 

50% 

 

 

Each Member’s Ownership Interest at any time will be determined by the ratio of the Member’s 

aggregate capital contributions to the aggregate capital contributions of all Members.  

 

2.2 Initial Capital Contributions. The initial capital contributions of * and * must be paid to the 

Company, in cash, immediately after all parties have signed this agreement. The initial capital 

contribution of * must be made by *’s transferring to the Company the assets listed on the attached 

Exhibit A. The transfer of the assets must be made immediately after all parties have signed this 

agreement by *’s executing and delivering to the Company such documents as may be necessary to 

transfer the assets listed on the attached Exhibit A to the Company free and clear of all liens and 

encumbrances. The transfer documents must include warranties of title and good right to transfer.  

Case # 2020-130



3 
 

iii  

 

2.3 Additional Members. Except as otherwise provided in the section of this agreement relating to 

substitution, additional Members of the Company may be admitted only with the consent of all 

Members.  

 

2.4 Additional Contributions. Except as otherwise provided in the Act, no Member will be required 

to contribute additional capital to the Company. Additional capital contributions to the Company 

may be made by the Members only with the Members’ unanimous approval. If the Members approve 

additional capital contributions, the Members must set a maximum amount for such contributions 

that will be accepted from the Members. Each Member will then have the right, but not the 

obligation, to contribute a pro rata share of the maximum based upon the Member’s Ownership 

Interest. If any Member elects to contribute less than the Member's pro rata share of the maximum, 

the other Members may contribute the difference on a pro rata basis in accordance with their 

Ownership Interests or on any other basis they may agree upon.  

 

2.5 No Interest on Capital Contributions. No interest will be paid on capital contributions.  

 

2.6 Capital Accounts. An individual capital account will be maintained for each Member. A 

Member's capital account will be credited with all capital contributions made by the Member and 

with all income and gain (including any income exempt from federal income tax) allocated to the 

Member. A Member’s capital account will be charged with the amount of all distributions made to 

the Member and with all losses and deductions (including deductions attributable to tax-exempt 

income) allocated to the Member. Members’ capital accounts must be maintained in accordance with 

the federal income tax accounting principles prescribed in Treasury Regulations §1.704-1(b)(2)(iv).  

 

3. ALLOCATION OF PROFITS AND LOSSES  

 

3.1 Determination. The net profit or net loss of the Company for each fiscal year will be determined 

according to the accounting principles employed in the preparation of the Company’s federal income 

tax information return for that fiscal year. In computing net profit or net loss for purposes of 

allocation among the Members, no special provision will be made for tax-exempt or partially tax-

exempt income of the Company, and all items of the Company’s income, gain, loss, or deduction 

required to be separately stated under IRC §703(a)(1) will be included in the net profit or net loss of 

the Company.  

 

3.2 Allocation of Net Profits and Net Losses. The net profit or net loss of the Company for a fiscal 

year will be allocated among the Members in proportion to their Ownership Interests. 

Case # 2020-130



4 
 

iv  

 

3.3 Allocations Solely for Tax Purposes. In accordance with IRC §704(c) and the corresponding 

regulations, income, gain, loss, and deduction with respect to any property contributed to the capital 

of the Company will be allocated among the Members, solely for income tax purposes, so as to take 

into account any variation between the adjusted basis of such property for federal income tax 

purposes in the hands of the Company and the agreed value of such property as set forth in this 

agreement, or in any document entered into at the time an additional contribution is made to the 

Company. Any elections or other decisions relating to the allocations to be made under this section 

will be made by action of the Members. The allocations to be made under this section are solely for 

purposes of federal, state, and local income taxes and will not affect, or in any way be taken into 

account in computing, any Member's capital account, allocable share of the net profits and net losses 

of the Company, or right to distributions.  

 

3.4 Prorates. If a Member has not been a Member during a full fiscal year of the Company, or if a 

Member's Ownership Interest in the Company changes during a fiscal year, the net profit or net loss 

for the year will be allocated to the Member based only on the period of time during which the 

Member was a Member or held a particular Ownership Interest. In determining a Member's share of 

the net profit or net loss for a fiscal year, the Members may allocate the net profit or net loss ratably 

on a daily basis using the Company's usual method of accounting. Alternatively, the Members may 

separate the Company's fiscal year into two or more segments and allocate the net profits or net 

losses for each segment among the persons who were Members, or who held particular Ownership 

Interests, during each segment based upon their Ownership Interests during that segment.  

 

4. DISTRIBUTIONS  

 

4.1 Distributions to Pay Taxes. To enable the Members to pay taxes on income of the Company that 

is taxable to the Members, the Company must make cash distributions to the Members. During each 

fiscal year the Company must distribute an amount equal to the product of (a) the highest aggregate 

rate of federal, state, and local income and self-employment tax imposed on the Company’s income 

for that fiscal year (taking into account the deductibility of state and local income taxes for federal 

income tax purposes) allocated to any Member who was a Member for the full fiscal year times (b) 

the amount of the taxable income of the Company allocated to all Members for that fiscal year. 

Distributions must be paid at least quarterly during each fiscal year at times that coincide with the 

Members’ payment of estimated taxes, and the amount of each distribution will be based upon the 

anticipated taxable income of the Company for the fiscal year of the distribution and the anticipated 

tax rates of Members, as determined at the time the distribution is made. The Company's obligation 

to make distributions under this section is subject to the restrictions governing distributions under the 

Act.  

 

4.2 Additional Distributions. Subject to the restrictions governing distributions under the Act, 

additional distributions of cash or property may be made from time to time by the Company to the 

Members, at such times and in such amounts as the Members determine. 

Case # 2020-130



5 
 

v  

 

4.3 Allocation of Distributions. All distributions to pay taxes and additional distributions must be 

made to Members in proportion to their Ownership Interests.  

 

5. ADMINISTRATION OF COMPANY BUSINESS  

 

5.1 Management. All Members have the right to participate in the management and conduct of the 

Company’s business. Subject to the limitations imposed by this agreement or by action of the 

Members, each Member is an agent of the Company and has authority to bind the Company in the 

ordinary course of the Company’s business.  

 

5.2 Actions by Members. Except as otherwise provided in this agreement, all decisions requiring 

action of the Members or relating to the business or affairs of the Company will be decided by the 

affirmative vote or consent of Members holding a majority of the Ownership Interests. Members may 

act with or without a meeting, and any Member may participate in any meeting by written proxy or 

by any means of communication reasonable under the circumstances.  

 

5.3 Approval of Other Members Required. In addition to the other actions requiring unanimous 

Member approval under the terms of this agreement, no Member has authority to do any of the 

following without the prior written consent of all other Members:  

 

5.3.1 To sell, lease, exchange, mortgage, pledge, or otherwise transfer or dispose of all or 

substantially all of the property or assets of the Company;  

5.3.2 To merge the Company with any other entity;  

 

5.3.3 To amend the articles of organization of the Company or this agreement;  

 

5.3.4 To incur indebtedness by the Company other than in the ordinary course of business;  

 

5.3.5 To authorize a transaction involving an actual or potential conflict of interest between a 

Member and the Company;  

 

5.3.6 To change the nature of the business of the Company; or  

 

5.3.7 To commence a voluntary bankruptcy case for the Company.  

 

5.4 Devotion of Time; Outside Activities. Each of the Members must devote so much time and 

attention to the business of the Company as the Members agree is appropriate. Members may engage 

in business and investment activities outside the Company, and neither the  

Case # 2020-130



6 
 

vi  

 

Company nor the other Members have any rights to the property, profits, or benefits of such 

activities. But no Member may, without the consent of all other Members, enter into any business or 

investment activity that is competitive with the business of the Company, or use any property or 

assets of the Company other than for the operation of the Company’s business. For this purpose, the 

property and assets of the Company include, without limitation, information developed for the 

Company, opportunities offered to the Company, and other information or opportunities entrusted to 

a Member as a result of being a Member of the Company.  

 

5.5 Compensation and Reimbursement. Members who render services to the Company are entitled 

to such compensation as may be agreed upon by the Members from time to time. Any compensation 

paid to a Member for services rendered will be treated as an expense of the Company and a 

guaranteed payment within the meaning of IRC §707(c), and the amount of the compensation will 

not be charged against the share of profits of the Company that would otherwise be allocated to the 

Member. Members are also entitled to reimbursement from the Company for reasonable expenses 

incurred on behalf of the Company, including expenses incurred in the formation, dissolution, and 

liquidation of the Company.  

 

5.6 Self Interest. A Member does not violate any duty or obligation to the Company merely as a 

result of engaging in conduct that furthers the interest of the Member. A Member may lend money or 

transact other business with the Company, and, in this case, the rights and obligations of the Member 

will be the same as those of a person who is not a Member, so long as the loan or other transaction 

has been approved or ratified by the Members. Unless otherwise provided by applicable law, a 

Member with a financial interest in the outcome of a particular action is nevertheless entitled to vote 

on such action.  

 

6. ACCOUNTING AND RECORDS  

 

6.1 Books of Account. The Members must keep such books and records relating to the operation of 

the Company as are appropriate and adequate for the Company's business and for the carrying out of 

this agreement. At a minimum, the following must be maintained at the principal office of the 

Company: (a) financial statements for the three most recent fiscal years; (b) federal, state, and local 

income tax returns for the three most recent fiscal years; (c) a register showing the current names and 

addresses of the Members; (d) a copy of the Company's articles of organization and any amendments 

thereto; (e) this agreement and any amendments thereto; (f) minutes of any meetings of Members; 

and (g) consents to action by Members. Each Member will have access to all such books and records 

at all times.  

 

6.2 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Company will be the calendar year.  

 

6.3 Accounting Reports. Within 90 days after the close of each fiscal year, Company must deliver to 

each Member an unaudited report of the activities of the Company for the preceding fiscal year, 

including a copy of a balance sheet of the Company as of the end of the year and a profit and loss 

statement for the year. 

Case # 2020-130



7 
 

vii  

 

6.4 Tax Returns. The Company must prepare and file on a timely basis all required federal, state, 

and local income tax and other tax returns. Within 90 days after the end of each fiscal year, the 

Company must deliver to each Member a Schedule K-1, showing the amounts of any distributions, 

contributions, income, gain, loss, deductions, or credits allocated to the Member during the fiscal 

year.  

 

6.5 Tax Matters Partner. Anytime the Company has more than 10 Members, any Member is an 

entity other than an estate or a C corporation, or any Member is a nonresident alien individual, the 

Members must designate one of the Members as the tax matters partner of the Company in 

accordance with IRC §6231(a)(7) and keep such designation in effect at all times.  

 

7. DISSOCIATION AND DISSOLUTION  

 

7.1 Withdrawal. A Member may withdraw from the Company only after giving notice of 

withdrawal to the other Members at least 90 days prior to the effective date of the withdrawal.  

 

7.2 Expulsion. A Member may be expelled from the Company by an affirmative vote of the 

Members holding a majority of the Ownership Interests held by Members other than the expelled 

Member if the expelled Member has been guilty of wrongful conduct that adversely and materially 

affects the business or affairs of the Company, or the expelled Member has willfully or persistently 

committed a material breach of the articles of organization of the Company or this agreement or has 

otherwise breached a duty owed to the Company or to the other Members to the extent that it is not 

reasonably practicable to carry on the business or affairs of the Company with that Member. The 

right to expel a Member under the provisions of this section does not limit or adversely affect any 

right or power of the Company or the other Members to recover any damages from the expelled 

Member or to pursue other remedies permitted under applicable law or in equity. In addition to any 

other remedies, the Company or the other Members may offset any such damages against any 

amounts otherwise distributable or payable to the expelled Member.  

 

7.3 Events of Dissolution. Except as otherwise provided in this agreement, the Company will 

dissolve upon the earliest of: (a) the death, incompetence, withdrawal, expulsion, bankruptcy, or 

dissolution of any Member; (b) approval of a dissolution of the Company by unanimous consent of 

the Members; or (c) at such time as the Company has no members.  

 

7.4 Effect of Member’s Dissociation. Within 120 days following the death, incompetence, 

withdrawal, expulsion, bankruptcy, or dissolution of a Member, the other Members (whether one or 

more) may elect to continue the Company by themselves or with others, and to cause the Company to 

purchase the interest of the dissociating Member pursuant to the provisions of the sections of this 

agreement relating to purchase price and payment for member's interest. Making the election is in the 

sole discretion of the other Members and  

Case # 2020-130



8 
 

viii  

 

requires the consent of other Members holding a majority of the Ownership Interests held by the 

other Members. Notice of the election must be given in writing to the dissociating Member or the 

dissociating Member’s successor in interest promptly after the election is made. If the other Members 

do not so elect, the Company will be dissolved.  

 

7.5 Purchase Price. If the other Members elect to cause the Company to purchase the interest of a 

dissociating Member under the section of this agreement relating to effect of member’s dissociation, 

the purchase price of the dissociating Member's interest in the Company will be determined by 

agreement between the other Members (acting by vote) and the dissociating Member. If an 

agreement on the purchase price is not reached within 30 days following the election to purchase the 

interest of the dissociating Member, the interest must be valued by a third party appraiser selected by 

the other Members who is reasonably acceptable to the dissociating Member, and the purchase price 

will be the value determined in that appraisal. In appraising the interest to be purchased, the appraiser 

must determine the fair market value of the interest as of the date of the event of dissociation. In 

determining the value, the appraiser must consider the greater of the liquidation value of the 

Company or the value of the Company based upon a sale of the Company as a going concern. The 

appraiser must also consider appropriate minority interest, lack of marketability, and other discounts. 

If the appraisal is not completed within 120 days following the election to purchase the interest of the 

dissociating Member, either the other Members or the dissociating Member may apply to a court of 

competent jurisdiction for the appointment of another appraiser, in which case the court-appointed 

appraiser must appraise the interest of the dissociating Member in accordance with the standards set 

forth in this section, and the purchase price will be the value determined in that appraisal.  

 

7.6 Payment for Member's Interest. The purchase price for the interest of a Member purchased 

under the section of this agreement relating to effect of member’s dissociation will be paid as 

follows:  

 

7.6.1 The purchase price will bear interest from the date of the election of the other Members to 

purchase the dissociating Member’s interest at the prime rate of interest in effect on the date 

of the election as quoted in The Wall Street Journal or, if that publication is not available, 

another reputable national publication selected by the other Members that is reasonably 

acceptable to the dissociating Member.  

 

7.6.2 The purchase price will be payable in accordance with the terms of a promissory note of the 

Company providing for the payment of the principal amount in 60 equal monthly 

installments, including interest on the unpaid balance, with the first installment to be due one 

month after the date of closing and an additional installment to be due on the same day of 

each month thereafter until the promissory note is paid in full. The promissory note will bear 

interest from the date of the closing at the rate specified above. The promissory note must 

provide that if any installment is not paid when due, the holder may declare the entire 

remaining balance, together with all accrued interest,  

Case # 2020-130



9 
 

ix  

 

immediately due and payable. Partial or complete prepayment of the remaining balance due under the 

promissory note will be permitted at any time without penalty, provided that any partial 

prepayment will not affect the amount or regularity of payments coming due thereafter.  

 

7.6.3 The purchase must be closed within 30 days following the determination of the purchase price. 

At the closing, the dissociating Member must sign and deliver to the Company a written 

assignment transferring the entire interest of the dissociating Member in the Company to the 

Company free and clear of all encumbrances. Such assignment must contain warranties of 

title and good right to transfer. At the closing, the Company must pay the accrued interest on 

the purchase price then due to the dissociating Member, and the Company must also deliver 

its promissory note to the dissociating Member. Each of the other Members must sign and 

deliver to the dissociating Member a security agreement granting a security interest to the 

dissociating Member in that percentage of the interest of each of the other Members in the 

Company equal to the Ownership Interest of the dissociating Member being purchased by the 

Company. The security agreement must be in a form reasonably acceptable to the attorney 

for the dissociating Member and will secure payment of the promissory note by the 

Company. The security agreement must provide that if there is a default in the payment of the 

promissory note by the Company and the security interest is foreclosed or the interest in the 

Company is retained by the secured party in satisfaction of the indebtedness, the interest may 

be transferred without the necessity of tendering the interest to the Company under the 

section of this agreement relating to tender of interest and the person acquiring the interest in 

the Company will be admitted as a member of the Company without further consent of the 

Members being required.  

 

As an example of the operation of this provision, if the Ownership Interest of a dissociating 

Member was 25% and there are three other Members, each with an 

Ownership Interest of 33-1/3% after the purchase of the dissociating 

Member’s Ownership Interest by the Company, each of the other Members 

would be required to grant the dissociating Member a security interest in an 

Ownership Interest of 8-1/3%.  

 

7.7 Effect of Purchase of Member's Interest. A dissociating Member will cease to be a Member 

upon the election of the other Members to cause the Company to purchase the dissociating Member's 

interest pursuant to the section of this agreement relating to effect of member’s dissociation. 

Thereafter, the dissociating Member will have no rights as a Member in the Company, except the 

right to have the dissociating Member’s interest purchased in accordance with the terms of this 

agreement.  

 

7.8 Successor in Interest. For purposes of this section relating to dissociation and dissolution, the 

term “dissociating Member” includes the dissociating Member’s successor in interest. 

Case # 2020-130



10 
 

x  

 

8. WINDING UP AND LIQUIDATION  

 

8.1 Liquidation Upon Dissolution. Upon the dissolution of the Company, the Members must wind 

up the affairs of the Company unless the dissolution results from the dissociation of a Member and 

the other Members elect to continue the Company under the provisions of this agreement relating to 

effect of member’s dissociation. If the affairs of the Company are wound up, a full account must be 

taken of the assets and liabilities of the Company, and the assets of the Company must be promptly 

liquidated. Following liquidation of the assets of the Company, the proceeds must be applied and 

distributed in the following order of priority:  

 

8.1.1 To creditors of the Company in satisfaction of liabilities and obligations of the Company, 

including, to the extent permitted by law, liabilities and obligations owed to Members as 

creditors (except liabilities for unpaid distributions);  

 

8.1.2 To any reserves set up for contingent or unliquidated liabilities or obligations of the Company 

deemed reasonably necessary by the Members, which reserves may be paid over to an escrow 

agent by the Members to be held by such escrow agent for disbursement in satisfaction of the 

liabilities and obligations of the Company, with any excess being distributed to the Members 

as provided below; and  

 

8.1.3 To Members in proportion to the positive balances of their capital accounts, after taking into 

account all adjustments made to capital accounts for the fiscal year during which the 

distributions to Members are made.  

 

8.2 Distribution of Property in Kind. With approval of the Members, property of the Company 

may be distributed in kind in the process of winding up and liquidation. Any property distributed in 

kind will be valued and treated for the Company’s accounting purposes, in accordance with Treasury 

Regulations §1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(e)(1), as though the property distributed had been sold at fair market 

value on the date of distribution. If property is distributed in kind, the difference between the fair 

market value of the property and its adjusted tax basis will, solely for the Company’s accounting 

purposes and to adjust the Members’ capital accounts, be treated as a gain or loss on the sale of the 

property and will be credited or charged to the Members’ capital accounts in the manner specified in 

the section of this agreement relating to capital accounts.  

 

8.3 Negative Capital Accounts. If any Member has a negative balance in the Member's capital 

account upon liquidation of the Company, the Member will have no obligation to make any 

contribution to the capital of the Company to make up the deficit, and the deficit will not be 

considered a debt owed to the Company or any other person for any purpose.  

 

  

Case # 2020-130



11 
 

9. TRANSFER OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 

 

xi 

 

9.1 General Restrictions. No Member may transfer all or any part of such Member's interest as a 

member of the Company except as permitted in this agreement. Any purported transfer of an interest 

or a part of an interest in violation of the terms of this agreement will be null and void and of no 

effect. For purposes of this section a “transfer” includes a sale, exchange, pledge, or other 

disposition, voluntarily or by operation of law.  

 

9.2 Permitted Transfers. A Member may transfer all or a part of the Member's interest in the 

Company with the prior written consent of all other Members. If the other Members do not consent 

to a particular transfer, the Member may transfer all or a part of the Member's interest if such interest 

or part has been tendered for sale to the Company in accordance with the section of this agreement 

relating to tender of interest, the tender has not been accepted within the time limit set forth in that 

section, the transfer is made to the transferee named in the notice of tender within 180 days after the 

notice of tender is effective, and the transfer is at a price and upon terms no more favorable to the 

transferee than those set forth in the notice of tender.  

 

9.3 Tender of Interest. If a Member wishes to transfer all or part of the Member's interest in the 

Company and the other Members do not consent, the interest or the part to be transferred must be 

tendered to the Company by giving written notice of such tender to the Company. Such notice must 

contain the name and address of the proposed transferee, the price to be paid by the proposed 

transferee for the interest, if any, and the terms of the proposed transfer. If a Member's interest is 

transferred by operation of law, the successor in interest to the transferring Member may give the 

required notice of tender to the Company at any time following the transfer, and such successor in 

interest will be deemed to have given the notice of tender at the time any other Member gives notice 

to the successor in interest and to all other Members of the failure to give the notice of tender. Within 

30 days after a notice of tender is given, the other Members may accept the tender on behalf of the 

Company and have the Company purchase the interest tendered for the lesser of the price set forth in 

the notice of tender (if the proposed transfer is to be by sale) or the price applicable to the purchase 

of a Member's interest pursuant to the section of this agreement relating to the effect of member’s 

dissociation. The tender must be accepted on behalf of the Company by giving notice of acceptance 

to the transferring Member or the transferring Member’s successor in interest. The purchase may, at 

the option of the other Members, be on the terms set forth in the notice of tender, if any, or the terms 

set forth in the section of this agreement relating to payment for member's interest. For purposes of 

those provisions, the date of the acceptance of tender will be deemed to be the date on which the 

other Members elected to purchase the interest of a dissociating Member.  

 

9.4 Effect of Tender. The Member tendering the interest will cease to be a Member with respect to 

the tendered interest upon an acceptance of the tender by the Company. Thereafter, the Member 

tendering the interest will have no rights as a Member in the Company, except the right to have the 

tendered interest purchased in accordance with the terms of this agreement. 

 

Case # 2020-130



12 
 

xii  

 

9.5 Substitution. If the interest of a Member is transferred, the transferee of the interest may be 

admitted as a Member of the Company if the transferee executes and delivers to the Company a 

written agreement to be bound by all of the terms and provisions of this agreement. But the transferee 

is entitled to be admitted as a Member only if all of the other Members consent to the admission of 

the transferee as a Member, and this consent may be withheld reasonably or unreasonably. If a 

Member who is the only member of the Company transfers the Member’s entire interest, the 

transferee will be admitted as a Member of the Company effective upon the transfer without the 

requirement of an agreement to be bound by this agreement or consent. If the transferee is not 

admitted as a Member, the transferee will have the right only to receive, to the extent assigned, the 

distributions from the Company to which the transferor would be entitled. Such transferee will not 

have the right to exercise the rights of a Member, including, without limitation, the right to vote or 

inspect or obtain records of the Company.  

 

10. INDEMNIFICATION AND LIABILITY LIMITATION  

 

10.1 Indemnification. Except as otherwise provided in this section, the Company must indemnify 

each of the Members to the fullest extent permissible under the law of the state in which the articles 

of organization of the Company have been filed, as the same exists or may hereafter be amended, 

against all liability, loss, and costs (including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees) incurred or suffered 

by the Member by reason of or arising from the fact that the Member is or was a member of the 

Company, or is or was serving at the request of the Company as a manager, member, director, 

officer, partner, trustee, employee, or agent of another foreign or domestic limited liability company, 

corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, benefit plan, or other enterprise. The Company may, by 

action of the Members, provide indemnification to employees and agents of the Company who are 

not Members. The indemnification provided in this section is not exclusive of any other rights to 

which any person may be entitled under any statute, agreement, resolution of Members, contract, or 

otherwise. But despite any other provision of this agreement, the Company has no obligation to 

indemnify a Member for:  

 

10.1.1 Any breach of the Member's duty of loyalty to the Company;  

 

10.1.2 Acts or omissions not in good faith that involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation 

of law;  

 

10.1.3 Any unlawful distribution under the Act; or  

 

10.1.4 Any transaction in which the Member derives improper personal benefit.  

 

10.2 Limitation of Liability. No Member of the Company is liable to the Company or to the other 

Members for monetary damages resulting from the Member’s conduct as a Member except to the 

extent that the Act, as it now exists or may be amended in the future, prohibits the 

Case # 2020-130



13 
 

xiii  

 

elimination or limitation of liability of members of limited liability companies. No repeal or 

amendment of this section or of the Act will adversely affect any right or protection of a Member for 

actions or omissions prior to the repeal or amendment.  

 

11. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS  

 

11.1 Amendment. The Members may amend or repeal all or part of this agreement by unanimous 

written agreement. This agreement may not be amended or repealed by oral agreement of the 

Members.  

 

11.2 Binding Effect. The provisions of this agreement will be binding upon and will inure to the 

benefit of the heirs, personal representatives, successors, and assigns of the Members. But this 

section may not be construed as a modification of any restriction on transfer set forth in this 

agreement.  

 

11.3 Notice. Except as otherwise provided in other sections of this agreement, any notice or other 

communication required or permitted to be given under this agreement must be in writing and must 

be mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid. Notices addressed to a 

Member must be addressed to the Member’s address listed in the section of this agreement relating to 

initial members, or if there is no such address listed for a Member, the address of the Member shown 

on the records of the Company. Notices addressed to the Company must be addressed to its principal 

office. The address of a Member or the Company to which notices or other communications are to be 

mailed may be changed from time to time by the Member’s or the Company’s giving written notice 

to the other Members and the Company. All notices and other communications will be deemed to be 

given at the expiration of three days after the date of mailing.  

 

11.4 Litigation Expense. If any legal proceeding is commenced for the purpose of interpreting or 

enforcing any provision of this agreement, including any proceeding in the United States Bankruptcy 

Court, the prevailing party in such proceeding will be entitled to recover a reasonable attorney's fee 

in such proceeding, or any appeal thereof, to be set by the court without the necessity of hearing 

testimony or receiving evidence, in addition to the costs and disbursements allowed by law.  

 

11.5 Additional Documents. Each Member must execute such additional documents and take such 

actions as are reasonably requested by the other Members in order to complete or confirm the 

transactions contemplated by this agreement.  

 

11.6 Counterparts. This agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, which together 

will constitute one agreement. 

Case # 2020-130



14 
 

xiv  

 

11.7 Governing Law. This agreement will be governed by the law of the state in which the articles 

of organization of the Company have been filed.  

 

11.8 Severability. If any provision of this agreement is invalid or unenforceable, it will not affect the 

remaining provisions.  

 

11.9 Third-Party Beneficiaries. The provisions of this agreement are intended solely for the benefit 

of the Members and create no rights or obligations enforceable by any third party, including creditors 

of the Company, except as otherwise provided by applicable law.  

 

11.10 Authority. Each individual executing this agreement on behalf of a corporation or other entity 

warrants that he or she is authorized to do so and that this agreement constitutes a legally binding 

obligation of the corporation or other entity that the individual represents.  

 

11.11 Counsel. This agreement has been drafted by * (the “Attorney”), who represents * in 

connection with the creation of the Company. * and * each understand that the Attorney can 

represent only one party in connection with this matter, that the Attorney represents * and does 

not represent them, and that they have been advised by the Attorney that they should retain 

attorneys of their own choice in connection with this matter. 

Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130



Case # 2020-130


	6-4 Revised Docket
	revised packet
	2020-080
	2020-080 application
	2020-080 site plan

	2020-118
	2020-118 Application
	2020-118 Lamar approval letter
	2020-118 Submittal Package - Letter and Exhibits A-G
	2020-118 Submittal Package - Exhibit H
	2020-118 Submittal Package - Exhibits I and J

	2020-119
	2020-119 Application
	2020-119 Application part 1
	2020-119 Application part 2
	2020.3.24 Duluth BZA Cover Letter
	Duluth - BZA Submittal
	DuluthIce_BZA
	Duluth Aerial Exhibit
	104 Duluth Site Photos
	Duluth Site 4
	Duluth Site 2
	Duluth Site 3
	Duluth Site 1




	2020-132
	2020-132 application
	20200024831 3960 and 3962 Dodson Chapel Rd BZA Form
	20200024831 3960 and 3962 Dodson Chapel Rd Summary
	20200024831 3960 and 3962 Dodson Chapel Rd Variance Request
	20200024831 3960 and 3962 Dodson Chapel Rd Address Locations
	20200024831 3960 and 3962 Dodson Chapel Rd Aerial
	3960 DODSON CHAPEL RD


	2020-132 Support Bobbie Forrest

	2020-133
	2020-133
	2020-133
	2020-133 application
	3209 Granny White Pike - Variance application
	3209 Granny White Pike Permit App
	3209 GWP 1ST
	3209 GWP Site plan
	Granny White Pk 3209 - plat


	2020-133 Supporting documentation

	2020-133 Jesse Blocher asking they build sidewalk

	2020-135
	2020-135
	2020-135 application
	1901_001
	20200024913 3757 WESTPORT DR BZA Summary
	AXExport-20200422-1020-file0001
	AXExport-20200422-1021-file0001 4
	AXExport-20200422-1020-file0001 2
	AXExport-20200422-1021-file0001 3


	2020-135 BZA-Exhibit-A
	2020-135 BZA-Exhibit-B
	2020-135 BZA-Exhibit-C
	2020-135 BZA-Exhibit-D

	2020-136
	2020-136
	2020-136
	2020-136 application
	App for zoning pg 1
	App for zoning pg 2
	App for zoning pg 3
	Montrose appeal letter
	Garage original plans
	Montrose Proposed Garage Plan


	2020-136 Neutral CM Sledge, Colby

	2020-136 Montrose drawings

	2020-055
	2020-055 application

	2020-065
	2020-065 application

	2020-069
	2020-069 application
	2020-069-Collins Legal Appeal Petition aforementioned
	Collins Legal, PLC
	BY:   /s/ Grover C. Collins
	Grover C. Collins, BPR# 027997

	2020-069 Oppose Claudette Stager
	2020-069 Oppose Fred Booth
	2020-069 Oppose Richard Audet
	2020-069 Oppose Richard Crume-Board of Directors
	2020-069 Oppose Robert A. Rosen
	2020-069 Oppose Ron Hogan 2nd letter
	2020-069 Oppose Ron Hogan

	2020-078
	2020-078
	2020-078
	2020-078 application
	2020-078 Oppose CM Sledge
	2020-078 Oppose William Weilman

	2020-078 Oppose CM Sledge, Colby

	2020-078 Support Pam Hiland

	2020-112
	2020-112 application
	2020-112 Oppose Connie Donovan
	2020-112 Support George E. Kurz

	2020-130
	2020-130 application
	2020-130 CM Kyonzte Toombs supports reinstatement
	2020-130 Operating Agreement
	2020-130 permit-quick claim information
	2020-130 Quick Claimed documentation combined
	2020-130 permit-quick claim information
	2020-130 Quik claim documentation
	2020-130 Operating Agreement

	2020-130 Quik claim documentation





